
RESOLUTION 209 OF 2O2I

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KINGSTON,
NEW YORK, REQUESTING A TRANSFER IN THE PARKS & RECREATION
DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $14,000.00 TO BALANCE THE BUDGET

Sponsored By

Finance/Audit Committee: Alderman Scott-
Childress, Hirsch, Tallerman, Davis, Schabot

WHEREAS, the Director of the Parks & Recreation Department has requested a transfer
in the amount of $14,000.00 and;

WHEREAS' the Finance/Audit Committee has received, reviewed and approved this
request;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK, AS FOLLOWS:

FROM: A1.7180.5111 Beach/Pool Seasonal Employees $10,000.00

A1.7210.5421 Dietz Stadium Telephone $2,000.00

A1.7180.5422 Pool/Beach Electricity $2,000.00

TO: A1.7110.5103 Parks Overtime Pay $10,000.00

41.7210.5422 Dietz Stadium Electricity $4,000.00

Submitted to the Mayor this _ day of Approved by the Mayor this _ day of

2021 202r

Elisa Tinti, City Clerk Steven T. Noble, Mayor

Adopted by Council on 2021
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City of Kingston

Parks and Recreation Department
I t i m b r ouc k@kings t o n-ny. g ov

{

Lynsey Timbrouck, Director
eSteven T. Noble, Mayor

September 27,2021

Dear President Shaut

As part of our mid-year review, the Parks and Recreation Department would like to request a $0 impact intemal
budget transfer to reconcile some of our accounts.

I respectfully request an internal transfer totaling $14,000. Please see the attached spreadsheet for details

Thank you in advance for your consideration.

Respectfully,

Lynsey Timbrouck
Director, Kingston Parks and Recreation

cc: John Tuey, Comptroller, City of Kingston

467 Broadway ' Kingston, New York 12401 ' (845) 331-1652 ' Fax (845) 331-2750. www.kingston-ny.gov





THE CITY OF KINGSTON COMMON COUNCIL

FINANCE AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE REPORT

INTERNAL TRANSFER
AUTHORIZATION_
CLAIMS

X

REQUEST DESCRIPTION

CONTINGENCY TRANSFER TRANSFER-
BONDING REQUEST
OTHER

BUDGET MODIFICATION
ZONING

DEPARTMENT: Parks and Recreation DATE:9/27/2021

Description:

lnternal budget transfer of $14,000.00 to reconcile department accounts

(See attached spreadsheet for breakdown)

Estimated Financial Impact: $0 S

Motion

Seconded

Action Required

SEQRA Decision:
Type I Action
Type II Action
Unlisted Action

Negative Declaration of Environmental Significance:

Conditioned Negative Declaration :

Seek Lead Agency Status: _
Positive Declaration of Environmental Significance:

Committee Vote YES NO

Reynolds Scott Childress, Ward 3,
Chairman

Don Tallerman, Ward 5

Anthony Davis, Ward 6

Steven Schabot, Ward 8

Michele Hirsch, Ward 9





General Fund Budgetary Transfer

To:

Fund

A1

A1

Dept

7lto
7270

Acct #

5103

5422

Dept

7180
7270
7780

Acct #

5111

5421
5422

From

Acct Description

Parks Overtime Pay

Dietz Stadiu m Electricity

Amount
1"0,000.00

4000.00

14,000.00

Fund

A1

A1

AL

Acct Description

Pool/Beach Seasonal Employees

Dietz Stadium Telephone

Pool/Beach Electricity

Amount
10,000.00

2,000.00

2,000.00

14000.00





RESOLUTION 210 OF 2O2I

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KINGSTON,
NEW YORK, REQUESTING A TRANSFER IN THE PARKS & RECREATION
DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $636.00 TO COVER ADDITIONAL
EXPENSES F'OR THE EVERETTE HODGE COMMUNITY CENTER FOR ITS
DROP-IN SCHOOL SUPPORT PROGRAM

Sponsored By:

Finance/Audit Committee: Scott-Childress, Hirsch,
Davis, Schabot, Tallerman

WHEREAS, the director of the Parks & Recreation Department has requested a transfer
in the amount of $636.00 to cover additional expenses in the Everette Hodge Community
Center Drop-In School Program, and;

WHEREAS, the Finance/Audit Committee has received, reviewed and approved this
request,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By THE COMMON COUNCTL OF
THE CrTY OF KII\GSTON, NEW YORK, AS FOLLOWS:

FROM: A1.7.7143.44.42020 CDBG Reimbursement $636.00

TO: A1.7.7143.12.5205 ComputerlDataProcessing Equip. $636.00

Submitted to the Mayor this _ day of Approved by the Mayor this _ day of

2021 2021

Elisa Tinti, City Clerk

Adopted by Council on

Steven T. Noble, Mayor

202t





THE CITY OF KINGSTON COMMON COUNCIL

FINANCE AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE REPORT

REOUEST DESCRIPT1ON

CONTINGENCY TRANSFERX

CLAIMS

TRANSFER-
BONDING REQUEST
OTHER

BUDGET MODIFICATION
ZONING

INTERNAL TRANSFER
AUTHORIZATION

Transfer $636.00 to cover additional costs of processing equipment for the Everette Hodge
Community Center for its Drop-ln School Support program, The funding will be reimbursJd by
CDBG through its CARES Act funding:

Transfer $ 636.00 from. 41 -7-7143- 22-42020 - CDBG Reimbursement
to: A1 -7 -7 143-12-5205 - Compute rlData processing Equipment

DATE Septembsr: 14. ?0?l

Estimated Financial Impact 0 $ignature

DEPARTMENT _Pgks and Rqqreation
Description:

Motion try

Seconded by_.-_

Action Required

SEQRA Decision:
Type I Action
Type II Action
Unlisted Action

Negative Declaration of Environmental Significance:

Conditioned Negative Declaration :

Seek Lead Agency Status: __
Positive Declaration ol' Environmental Significance:

Committee Vote YEq It{o

Reynolds Scott-Ch i ldress, Chairman

Don Tallerman, Ward 5

Anthony Davis, Ward 6

Steven Schabot, Ward 8

Michele Hirsch, Ward 9
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$ City of Kingston

Parks and Recreation Department
I t i m b r ouc k@king s t on-ny. go v
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Lynsey Timbrouck, DirectorSteven T. Noble, Mayor

September 14,2021

Dear President Shaut:

As you ate aware, the Parks and Recreation Department was awarded $40,000 of cDBG-cvlll funds (CARES Act funding)
for its Drop-ln Sohool Support Program at the Dverette Hodge Communify Center (EHC) and Rondout Neighborhood
Center (RNC).

This past June, the Common Council voted unanimously in favor to approve the CDBG reimbursement transfer for
computers at both the RNC and EllC. As part of that transfer, $12,074.21 was approved for the EHC. Due to a minor
increase in equipment costs, we will need an additional transfer of $636.00 from the CIJBG Reimbursement account. This
will cause no additional financial impact.

I respectfully request the following fund transfer:

Transfer $ 636.00 from: A1-7-7143-22-42020 - CDBC Reimbursement
to : A1 -7 -7 I 43 - I 2-5205 - Computer/Data Processin g Equ ipment

Thank you in advance for your consideration.

Respectfully,

'r"i

Director, Kingston Parks and Recreation

cc. Amanda L. Bruck, Director, Office of Community Development
John Tuey, Comptroller, City of Kingston

467 Braadway'Kingston, New York 12401 '(845) 331-1682 .Fax (845) 331-275A.www.kingston-ny.gov





RESOLUTION 211 OF 2O2I

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KINGSTON,
NEW YORK, REQUESTING A TRANSFER IN THE BUILDING SAFETY
DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,8OO.OO TO COVER THE EXPENSE OF
ADDITIONAL VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

Sponsored By:

Finance/Audit Committee: Alderman Scott-
Childress, Hirsch, Davis, Schabot, Tallerman

WHEREAS, The Director of the Building Safety Department has requested a transfer in
the amount of $1,800.00 to cover the expense of additional vehicle maintenance, and;

WHEREAS, the Finance/Audit Committee has received, reviewed and approved this
request.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By THE COMMON COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK, AS FOLLOWS:

FROM: A1.3620.14.5472 Contracted Services $1,800.00

TO: A1.3620.14.5444 Vehicle Maintenance $1,800.00

Submitted to the Mayor this _ day of Approved by the Mayor this _ day of

2021 202r

Elisa Tinti, City Clerk

Adopted by Council on

Steven T. Noble, Mayor

2021





1THE CITY OF'KINGSTON COMMON COUNCIL

FINANCE AI\D AUDIT
COMMITTEE REPORT

RsouEsI ppgcRrPxrcH

CONTINGENCY TRANSFERXINTERNAL TRANSFER
AUTHORIZATION_
CLAIMS

TRANSFER
BONDING RSQUEST_
OTHER

BTIDGET MODIFICATION
ZONING

DEPARTMENT: Building,safety-._ DATE: st2lt2oz-

Description. Request for internal transfer to cover additional vehicle maintenance expenses.

Estimated Financial Impact: $ o

Services A1362014 5472 $1,800.00

$1,800.00To: Vehicle Maintenance A1362014 5444

Motion

Secondsd by.-_--_

Action Required:

SEQRA Decision:
Type I Action
Type II Action
Unlisted Action

Negative Declaration of Environmental Signifi cance:

Conditioned Negative Declaration: _--
Seek Lead Agency Status: _
Positive Declaration of Env ironmental Signifi cance I

Commiftee Yote YES
NO

Reynolds Scott Childress, Ward 3,
Chairman

Don Tallerman, Ward 5

Anthony Davis, Ward 6

Michele Hirsch, Ward 9

Steven Schabot, Ward 8





'i)._rj Itt Steven T. Noble
Mayor

Stephan Knox
Director

September 28,2A21

Alderperson at Large Andrea Shaut
City of Kingston Common Council
420Broadway
Kingston, NY 12401

CITY OF KIIYGSTOI\
|-r--:t J:-- .. fi-f^r - O- al ^-. :,- ^ I.),-f^--- ^--- ^-^LDUrrulng D4rcty a, LUIr,ltg Drrrurugrrrsilr

5 Garraghan Drive
Kingston, NY 12401

Phone (845) 33 l-1217
Fax (845) 331-1224

Dear Alderperson at Large Shaut,

I respectfully submit the following request to transfer funds from one budget line item to another

During yearly service conducted by personnel in the DPW garage, several of our vehicles would
not pass inspection without the replacement of tires. The department's budget for vehicle
maintenance, which has been reduced quite a bit in the last three years, has been expended and
thus this request for a transfer.

We ask for your consideration in this matter and will make ourselves available for any questions
or concems.

Sincerely,

Knox
Director of Building Safety & ZoningEnforcement

Cc. Mayor, Steven T. Noble
Corporation Counsel, Kevin Bryant
Comptroller, John Tuey





RESOLUTION 2I2 OF 2O2I

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KINGSTON,
NEW YORK, REQUESTING A TRANSFER IN THE CITY CLERK'S OFFICE IN
THE AMOUNT OF $6,950.00 TO COVER THE EXPENSE REPLACING THE
PANIC BUTTON CONTROL PANEL AND DEVICES AT CITY HALL

Sponsored By:

Public Safety/General Government Committee:
Alderman Scott-Childress, Hirsch, Davis, Schabot,
Tallerman

WHEREAS, the City Clerk has requested a transfer in the amount of 56,950.00 to cover
the expense of replacing the panic button control panel and devices at City Hall, and;

WHEREAS, the Finance/Audit Committee has received, reviewed and approved this
request

NOW' THEREFORE, BE rT RESOLVED By THE COMMON COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK, AS FOLLOWS:

FROM: 41.1910.5439 EAP $6,500.00

Al.l4l0.582l Hospital & Med. $450.00

TO: A1.1620.14.547I Central Printing Equipment $4,950.00

,A.1.l 620.14.5443 Building Maintenance $2,000.00

Submitted to the Mayor this _ day of Approved by the Mayor this _ day of

2021 2021

Elisa Tinti, City Clerk Steven T. Noble, Mayor

Adopted by Council on 2021





1THE CITY OF KTNGSTON COMMON COUNCIL

FINANCE AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE REPORT

REOUEST DESCRIPTION

CONTINGENCY TRANST'ER TRANSFER-
BONDING REQUEST 

-
OTHER

INTERNALTRANSFER X

AUTHORIZATION
CLAIMS

BUDGET MODIFICATION
zoNrNG _

DEPARTMENT: Citv Clerk DATE: october 2021

Description. Requesting a transfer of $6,950.00 to cover the expense of replacing the panic buttons and

control panel at City Hall

FROM: 41.1910.5439 EAP $6,500.00 A1.1410.5821 Hospital & Medical $450.00

TO: A L1620.1 4.5471 Bld Service contracts $4,950.00

A1.1620.14.5443 Building Maintenance $2,000.00

Estimated Financial Impact: $ o Signature

Motion

Seconded

Action Required:

SEQRA Decision:
Type I Action
Type II Action
Unlisted Action

Negative Declaration of Environmental Significance:

Conditioned Negative Declaration:

Seek Lead Agency Status: _
Positive Declaration of Environmental Significance: _

Committee Vote YES
NO

Reynolds Scott Childress, Ward 3,
Chairman

Don Tallerman, Ward 5

Anthony Davis, Ward 6

Michele Hirsch, Ward 9

Steven Schabot, Ward 8





o CITY OF KINGSTON

Office of the City Clerk & Registrar ofVital Statistics
cityclerk@kingston-ny.gov

(+

Steven T. Noble, Mayor
Elisa Tinti, City Clerk & Registrar

Deidre Sills, Deputy Clerk
Susan Mesches, Deputy Registrar

President Shaut
President of the Council
420 Broadway
Kingston, New York t240t

September 13,2O2'J"

Dear President Shaut,

The alarm panel in City Hall needs to be updated with new equipment as the current equipment
No longer has parts available due to its age. The cost of replacing the Panic Button Control Panel &
devices is 56,950.00. I request the following interdepartmental transfer to cover this expense. This
transfer has no financial impact.

Thank you,
Elisa Tinti

City Hall 420 Broadway Kingston, New York 12401 . (845) 334-3915 (845) 334-3918 cityclerk@kingston-ny.gov



City Hall 420 Broadway .Kingston, New York 12401 (845) 334-3915 (845) 334-3918 cityclerk@kingston-ny.gov



SAFECO
ALARM SYSTEMS

(845)

338-4440

Safeco Alarm Systems, lnc.
PO Box 1849

Kingston, NY 12402

p00) 432-4440 (845) 338-4440

(FAX) (845) 3s8-0e64

d m u I q u ee n @ s afecoal a rm s. co m

www.safecoalarms.com

September 8,2021

Kingston City Hall
420 Broadway
Kingston NY 12401

Replacement of Panic Button Gontrol Panel & Devices

lnstall one (1) DMP Control Panel
. Replace Existing as it is showing signs of age, and due to age, we can no

longer get parts
lnstall twenty-two (22) panic buttons; 20 Replacements and 2 new additions

lnstall Two (2) Repeater

lnstall one (1) High Power Transceiver

lnstall One (1) Keypad
. Replace Existing

I nstall Cellular Communicator

lnstall One (1) Low Temp Sensor

lnstall One (1) High Water Sensor

Notes:
Program & Test
NYS prevailing wage rates apply

a

a

a

Total lnstall Gost
Monthly Monitoring

Submitted by,
Dougla,r JlUrI4ilEt t
Douglas Mulqueen

$6,950.00
$40.00

1of 1





RESOLUTION 213 OF 2O2I Ordinance: Handicap Parking

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AN ORDINANCE IN RELATION TO THE
TRAFFIC ON THE PUBLIC STREETS OF THE CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW
YORK, ADDING HAI\DICAP PARKING ON SOUTH PROSPECT STREET

Sponsored By:

Public Safety/General Government Committee:
Alderman Davis, Koop, Scott-Childress, Ventura
Morell, Hirsch

WHEREAS, in the interest of safety and the needs of residents, parking on the streets

must be regulated.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF KII\GSTON, NEW yORKo AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1- ARTICLE 7, SECTION 390-57, SCFIEDULE XX, "HANDICAP
PARKING" is hereby amended by ADDING the following:

HANDICAP PARKING at 27 S. Prospect Street

SECTION 2- All ordinances and parts thereof, inconsistent herewith are hereby
repealed

SECTION 3- This resolution shall take place immediately after passage, approval
and publication as provided by law.

Submitted to the Mayor this _ day of Approved by the Mayor this _ day of

202r 202r

Elisa Tinti, City Clerk Steven T. Noble, Mayor

Adopted by Council on 2021





TI{E CITY OF'KINGSTON COh{MON COUI{CTL

PI.IELIC SAFETY/GENERAL GGVEPNMENT
CGIVIMITTEE ITEPORT

DEPARTMENT: DATE; C

Description:

Signature:

Motion by lttuU

Tvnn Committee Vote
Seconded by

Action Required:

SEQRA Decision:
Type I Action
Type II Action
Unlisted Action

Negative Declaration of Environmenta Significance: ,

Conditioned Negative Declaration :

Seek Lead Agency Status:

Positive Deciaration of Environrnental Significance: _

YES NO

Davis,
/

T

a-
/

u6

a
J V

VJeffrey Ventura Morell, Ward 1

Mi';iiele Hirsch, Ward 9





CTTY OF KINGSTON
Oflice of the City Engineer

.jschulthcis @kingston-ny. gov

John M. Schultheis, P.H., City linginecr Stevcn T. Noblc, Mayor

0ct. 1,2021

Andrea 5haut., Alderman-At-Large, President of the Common Council
Kingston City Hall
420 Broadway
Kingston, New York 12401

RHr 27 $. Prospect $treet

Dear President $haut:

A request by Alderman Don Tallermrn was received by my office requestins a handicap parking space
f,t thi$ location. My understanding is that the resident recently applied for a handicap parking placard
and that the placard number will be provided by Mr, Talle rman when available. The Engineering
Department does not object to this request.

Please accept this communication requesting this item be heard at an upcoming meeting of the Public
Safety / General Government committee.

Respectfully,

John M. Schultheis, P.E.
City Engineer

Cc: Don Tallerman, Ward 5

City Hall .420 Droadway . King-ston, New York 194.01 . (845) 334-3967.www.kirrgston-ny,gov





n'fl'$ CITY OF KINGSTON
Office of the Citv Engineer

jschultheis @kingston-ny. gov

John M. Schultheis, P.E., City Engineer Steven T. Noble, Mayor

Oct. L,2O2L

Andrea Shaut., Alderman-At-Large, President of the Common Council
Kingston City Hall
420 Broadway
Kingston, New York I240L

RE: 27 S. Prospect Street

Dear President Shaut:

A request by Alderman Don Tallerman was received by my office requesting a handicap parking space
at this location. My understanding is that the resident recently applied for a handicap parking placard
and that the placard number will be provided by Mr. Tallerman when available. The Engineering
Department does not object to this request.

Please accept this communication requesting this item be heard at an upcoming meeting of the Public
Safety / General Government committee.

Respectfully,
bre.r.&n-ll,q F*fi-1

coo Je.<* *d-{ a7 5.?

fttto
ilI,r::\.'-\.e'-

John M. Schultheis, P.E

City Engineer

Cc: Don Tallerman, Ward 5

City Hdl . 420 Broadway . Kingston, New York L2401 .(845) 334-3967. www.kingston-ny.gov





RESOLUTION 2I4 OF 2O2I Ordinance: Limited Time Parking

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AN ORDINANCE IN RELATION TO THE
TRAFFIC ON THE PUBLIC STREETS OF THE CITY OF KTNGSTON, NEW
YORK, ADDING LIMITED TIME PARKING ON WYNKOOP PLACE

Sponsored By

Public Safety/General Govemment Committee:
Alderman S cott-Childress, Hirsch, Davis, Schabot,
Tallerman

WHEREAS, in the interest of safety and the needs of the residents, parking on the streets

must be regulated.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1- ARTICLE 7, SECTION 390-100, SCHEDULE XVII: "LIMITED
TIME PARKING" is hereby amended by ADDING the following:

On the South side of Wynkoop Place, closest to the intersection of Wynkoop Place

and Foxhall Avenue,"20 Minute Limited Time Parking Between 7:00 am and 3:00 pm
Monday through Saturday"

SECTION 2- All ordinances and parts thereof, inconsistent herewith are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 3- This resolution shall take place immediately after passage, approval
and publication as provided by law.

Submitted to the Mayor this _ day of Approved by the Mayor this _ day of

202t 2021

Elisa Tinti, City Clerk Steven T. Noble, Mayor

Adopted by Council on 202r





THE CITY CIF KIITGSTON COMMON COUNCIL

FUBLIC SAF'ETY/QENARAL GOVtrRNMANT
' COMMITTAE RAPORT

Add to 390- I l)0, $chednle XVII: Limitsd 'l"ime Farking, one parking spacs on south sitle of Wynkoop

trf;3;\ 
ace ck:sesi ter int*rrsction with Foxhail Avsnu*o

DATE: 2A2t

Description

DEPAR.TMENT: Ensineerinp

Motion Rsc-
Itl nt$econded

Action Rnquired:

SEQRA Decision:
Type I Action
Type II Action
ljnlisted Action

Negative Declaration of Enviranrnental S ignifi cance:

Conditioned Nrgative Declnration: _,_
$eek Lead Agency $tatus: _
Positive Declaration of Envinrnmental Significance: *_-_

Cornmitte* Vote Yn$ NO

I Davis,

/

Doug Kogp, Y{;a;rf2

74Ll{w I
/

--.Rfrinie S{6tt-Ch il dr"s ss, Wff 3

tl
Jelli.ey Ventura Morell, Ward I

/

Michele Ilirsch, Ward I





,@o lcr-
CITY OF KINGSTON

Oflicc of the City Engineer
jschulthcis@kirrgston-ny. gov

John Schulthcis, P.li., City lingineer Steveu 
-ll. Nobl*, Mayor

July 2L,2O2L

Andrea Shaut, Prnsident
City of Kingston Common Council
Via email

RE: Limited time parking, Wynkoop at Foxhall

Dear President Shaut:

This is in respon$e to Mr. Tallerman's request to add limited time parking signage during the hours of 7am to 3pm,
Monday through Saturday. This location does not currently have any parking controls or signage legislated or installed.

It is mY recommendation the code be revised to add one twenty-minute parking space on the south side of Wynkoop
Place, closest to the intersection with Foxhall Avenue.

Please add this item to a me eting of the Publlc Safety / 6eneral Government committee"

Sincerely,

John M, Schultheis, P,E.

City Engineer

Cily Hall . 420 llroarlway . Kingston, New Yor k t 240 I . (845) i]34-3967. www.kingston-ny.gov
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THE CITY OF KINGSTON COMMON COUNCIL

PUBLIC SAFETY/GENERAL GOVERNMENT
COMMITTEE REPORT

DEPARTMENT F,nsineerins DATE: _Aug. 2021-
Description

Add to 390-100, Schedule XVII: Limited Time Parking, one parking space on south side of Wynkoop
fene, space closest to intersction with Foxhall Avenue,
/ lct-,t-

Motion T{4

Seconded \ilmq
Action Required:

SEQRA Decision:
Type I Action
Type II Action
Unlisted Action

Negative Declaration of Environmental Significance:

Conditioned Negative Declaration :

Seek Lead Agency Status:

Committee Vote YES NO

Tony Davis, Chairman

Y
Doug Koop, Ward 2

Y

Rennie Scott-Childress, Ward 3

v
Jeffrey Ventura Morell, Ward 1

{

Michele Hirsch, Ward 9Positive Declaration of Environmental Signifi cance:
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CITY OF KII{GSTON
Office of the CitV Engineer

jschultheis @kingston-ny.gov

John Schultheis, P.[i., City Engineer Steven -f. Noblc, Mayor

July 2L,2027

Andrea Shaut, President
City of Kingston Common Council
Via email

RE: Limited time parking, Wynkoop at Foxhall

Dear President Shaut:

This is in response to Mr. Tallerman's request to add limited time parking signage during the hours of 7am to 3pm,
Monday through Saturday. This location does not currently have any parking controls or signage legislated or installed

It is my recommendation the code be revised to add one twenty-minute parking space on the south side of Wynkoop
Place, closest to the intersection with Foxhall Avenue.

Please add this item to a meeting of the Public Safety / General Government committee

Sincerely,

John M. Schultheis, P.E.

City Engineer

City Hall '420 Ilroadway . Kingston, New York 12401 . (845) 334-3967.www.kingsron-ny.gov





lon

RN

PUBLIC SAFETGENERAI GOVERN MENT
Wednesday October 27th G:3Opm.

NEW BUSINESS

1 - Limited Parking on Wynkoop - J. Schultheis & Alderman
2 - Parking Restrictions on Broadway - E. Norman
3 - Snow Emergency Routes - E. Norman

n
/

I

tu

4 - Stop Signs - Alderman Scott-Childress
5 - Handicap Sign Request - J. Schultheis & Alderman Tallerman

OLD BUSINESS

{ r Crosswalk Flags

2-No Parkingat22 Mary's Ave -"TRb*f* 3 r)
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RESOLUTION 215 of 2021

RESOLUTTON OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF'THE CITY OF KINGSTON, -.,

NEW YORK, REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION FOR CONVEYANCE OF AN "

EASEMENT TO THE KINGSTONIAN DEVELOPMENT, LLC,AND FOR AN
EASEMENT TO THE KINGSTONIAN DEVELOPMENT, LLC, WRITTEN
CONSENT FOR THE PARTIAL ABANDONMENT OF F'AIR STREET
EXTENSION, AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE ANY AND
ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY

Sponsored By: Finance/Audit Committee: Alderman: Scott-
Childress, Tallerman, Davis, Hirsch, Schabot,

WHEREAS, request has made for the Common Council to provide written
consent for the partial abandonment, as a neighboring owner, of Fair Street Extension
pursuant to Statute (C-14-1); and

WHEREAS, request has been made to authori ze the conveyance of an easement
to the Kingstonian Development, LLC for the construction/location of those portions of
the development project that fall within the boundaries of Fair Street Extension, provided
that the developer agrees to be responsible for all maintenance of Fair Street Extension;
and

WHEREAS, request has been made to authori ze the conveyance of an easement
to Kingstonian Development, LLC to allow for an ADA compliant pedestrian access
bridge over Schwenk Drive and the location of structural support for the pedestrian
bridge and elevator tower adjacent to Schwenk Drive as necessary.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That the Common Council of the City of Kingston, New York,
authorizes the conveyance of an easement to the Kingstonian Development, LLC for the
construction/location of those portions of the development project that fall within the
boundaries of Fair Street Extension, provided that the developer agrees to be responsible
for all maintenance of Fair Street Extension.

SECTION 2. That the Common Council of the City of Kingston, New York,
authorizes the conveyance of an easement to the Kingstonian Development, LLC to allow
for an ADA compliant pedestrian access bridge over Schwenk Drive and the location of
structural support for the pedestrian bridge and elevator tower adjacent to Schwenk Drive
as necessary.





SECTIoN 3. That the Common Council of the City of Kingston, New york,
authorizes the Mayor to execute any and all documents related to the conveyance of the
two easements and partial abandonment of Fair Street Extension.

SECTION 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately.

Submitted to the Mayor this _ day of Approved by the Mayor this _ day of
2021 202r

Elisa Tinti, City Clerk Steven T. Noble, Mayor

Adopted by Council on 202r





THE CITY OF KINGSTON COMMON COUNCIL
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CONTINGENCY TRANSFER TRANSFER-
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-
OTHER

BUDGET MODIFICATION
ZONING

DEPARTMENT: Mavorts DATE: _10/13/2021

Description:

The council common council provides written consent for the partial abandonment as a neighboring
property owner of Fair Street Extension pursuant to statute (C-14-l). The Common Council authorize the
conveyance of an easement to the Kingstonian Development,LLC for construction/location of those
portions of the development project that fall within the boundaries of Fair St Ext. provided that the
developer agree to be responsible for all maintenance of Fair Street Extension and that the Council
authorize the conveyance of an easement to Kingstonian Development, LLC to allow for an ADA
compliant pedestrian access bridge over Schwenk Drive and the location of structural support for the
pedestrian bridge and elevator tower adjacent to Schwenk Drive as necessary and authorize the Mayor to
sign all documents related to the two easements and partial abandonment as mentioned previously.

Motion

Seconded

Action Required:

SEQRA Decision:
Type I Action
Type ll Action
Unlisted Action

Negative Declaration of Environmental Significance:

Conditioned Negative Declaration:

Seek Lead Agency Status:

Committee Vote YES
NO

Reynolds Scott Childress, Ward 3,
Chairman

Don Tallerman, Ward 5

Anthony Davis, Ward 6

Michele Hirsch, Ward 9

Steven Schabot, Ward 8Positive Declaration of Environmental Significance:
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CITY OF KINGSTON
Office of the Mayor

mayor@kingston-ny. gov

Steven T. Noble
Mayor

October 1,2021

Honorable Andrea Shaut
President/Alderman- at- Large
Kingston Common Council
420Broadway
Kingston, NY 12401

Re: Fair Street Extension and Easement

Dear President Shaut,

As you are aware, pursuant to Resolution no. 43 of 2021, the Common Council approved the conveyance of
property owned by the City of Kingston at 21 North Front Street, the former parking garage, to the Kingston
Local Development Corporation for development in accordance with the request for qualifications previously
issued by my office. Subsequently, the Kingston Local Development Corporation has entered into a land
development agreement to convey the premises to the Kingstonian Development,LLC for said development.

As part of this development project, it will be necessary to partially abandon Fair Street Extension and to grant
certain easements to the developer to accommodate the construction of the commercial building and parking
garuge and the pedestrian bridge to be constructed over Schwenk Drive.

I am therefore recommending to the Council that they authorize the partial abandonment of Fair Street
Extension pursuant to statute and this may require a public hearing. Also, I am recommending that the Council
authorize the conveyance of an easement to the Kingstonian Development, LLC for construction/location of
those portions of the development project that fall within the boundaries of Fair St Ext. provided that the
developer agree to be responsible for all maintenance of Fair Street Extension. I am also recommending that the
Council authorize the conveyance of an easement to Kingstonian Development, LLC to allow for an ADA
compliant pedestrian access bridge over Schwenk Drive and the location of structural support for the pedestrian
bridge and elevator tower adjacent to Schwenk Drive as necessary.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or concerns.

Respectfully Submitted,

Steven T. Noble
Mayor

STN:rjv

City Hall. 420 Broadway . Kingston, New York I240L . (845)334-3902 . Fax (84,5) 334-3904 .www.kingston-ny.gov





RESOLUTION 216 of 2021

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
KINGSTON, NEW YORKO AMENDING THE FEE SCHEDULE TO
REFLECT RATES FOR ANNUAL HOTEL F'EES

WHEREAS, request has been made to amend Section 217-l of the City
Code to include rates for annual hotel fees.

NOW THEREFOREO BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That the Common Council of the City of Kingston authorizes
the amendment to Section 2I7-l of the City Code to include rates for annual hotel
fees as follows:

1-3 units: Base Fee $75.00, per unit fee: $50.00

4-9 Units: Base Fee $150.00, per unit fee: $50.00

10-20 Units: Base Fee $250.00, per unit fee: $45.00

More than 20 Units: Base Fee $400.00, per unit fee: $40.00

Assembly spaces will be treated the same as commercial property fire
inspections.

SECTION 2 . This resolution shall take effect immediately.

Submitted to the Mayor this _ day of Approved by the Mayor this _ day of

2021

Elisa Tinti, City Clerk

Adopted by Council on _,2021

Sponsored By: Finance/Audit Committee: Alderman: Scott-
Childress, Tallerman, Davis, Hirsch, Schabot

2021

Steven T. Noble, Mayor
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Description. Establish the following rates for annual hotel fees: 1-3 units, base fee: $ 75.00, per unit fee: $50.$

4-9 units, base fee; $150.00, per unit fee: $50.00; 10-20 units, base fee: $250,00, per unit fee: $afu

more than 20 units, base fee: $400.00, per unit fee: $40.00.

Assembly spaces will be treated the same as commercial property fire inspections.

Estimated Financial Impact: $o S

DEPARTMENT: Building & Safetv DATE: lon3tzoz1

Motion Hirsch

Seconded Davis

Action Required:

SEQRA Decision:
Type I Action
Type II Action
Unlisted Action

Negative Declaration of Environmental Significance: _

Conditioned Negative Declaration: _
Seek Lead Agency Status: 

-Positive Declaration of Environmental Significance:

Committee Vote YES
NO

Reynolds Scott Childress, Ward 3,
Chairman

Don Tallerman, Ward 5

V
Anthony Davis, Ward 6

Michele Hirsch, Ward 9

Steven Schabot, Ward 8





RESOLUTION 217 of 2021

RESOLUTION OF'THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KINGSTON,
NEW YORKN REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CITY WIDE
SEWERS PHASE 1 AND 2 PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $855,000 AND
AUTHORIZATION FOR THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE ANY AND ALL
CONTRACTS FOR THE PROJECT

Sponsored By: Finance/Audit Committee: Alderman: Scott-
Childress, Tallerman, Davis, Hirsch, Schabot

WHEREAS, request has been made for authorization for City Wide Sewers
Phase I and 2 Project in the amount of $855,000 , said full amount expected to be
reimbursed by HUD / CDBG funds; and

WHEREAS, the project is a Type 2 actionunder SEQR 6 NYCRR 617.5 (c)
(2).

NOW THEREF'ORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK AS FOLLOWS:

SE oN 1. That the Common Council of the City of Kingston, New York,
authorizes the amount of $855,000 for City Wide Sewers Phase 1 and 2 Project.

oN 2. That the Common Council of the City of Kingston, New York,
authorizes the Mayor to execute any and all documents related to this Project.

SE,CTION 3. That this is a Type 2 Actionunder SEQR 6 NYCRR 617.5 (c)
(2).

SE N4. This resolution shall take effect immediately

Submitted to the Mayor this _ day of Approved by the Mayor this _ day of
202r 2021

Elisa Tinti, City Clerk Steven T. Noble, Mayor

Adopted by Council on 2021
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Motion by

Seconded

Action Required

SEQRA Decision:
Type I Action
Type II Action
Unlisted Action

Negative Declaration of Environmental Significance:

Conditioned Negative Declaration:

Seek Lead Agency Status:

1THE CITY OF KINGSTON COMMON COUNCIL

FINANCE AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE REPORT
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CONTINGENCY TRANSFERINTERNAL TRANSFER
AUTHORIZATTON _
CLAIMS

BUDGET MODIFICATION
ZONING

Description:

Request authorization for the Citywide Sewers Phase I and2 Project in the amount of $855,000, the full
amount expected to be reimbursed by HUD / CDBG Funds.

Authorize the Mayor to execute all and any contracts related to this project.

Affirm that the project is a Type 2 action under SEQR, 6 cRR Ny 617.5 (c) (2).

DEPARTMENT: DATE: _l0ll3l202l_

Estimated Financial Impact: $ O

Commi ttee Vote YES
NO

Reynolds Scott Childress, Ward 3,
Chairman

Don Tallerman, Ward 5

Anthony Davis, Ward 6

Michele Hirsch, Ward 9

Steven Schabot, Ward 8Positive Declaration of Environmental Significance:
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CITY OF KINGSTON

Office of the Citv Engineer
.jschultheis @kingston-ny.gov

John M. Schultheis, I'.E., City l.)ngincer Stcvcn 1'. Noble, Mayor

Andrea Shaut., Alderman-At-Large, President of the Common Council
Kingston City Hall
420 Broadway
Kingston, New York 724OL

September 30,2OZL

RE: Citywide Sewers, phases l- and 2

Dear President Shaut:

To advance this project we request authorization by the Common Council for spending in the first
instance. The expected plan of finance for this project is 1"00% reimbursement of all costs up to
Sass,ooo by HUD CDBG funds.

lf approved by the Common Council, we will proceed with design of sanitary and storm sewer
replacement or rehabilitation projects including Prospect Street, Sterling Street, and Van Deusen Street.
Following design, we will determine which portions of the project to advertise for bids under one or
more projects. Based on the available funding, we could award all or part of the designed streets for
construction. Construction is expected during 2O22.

ln addition to the authorization for spending, we request a finding to satisfy the SEQR that the project is

a type 2 action under SEQR, 6 CRR NY 617.5 (c) (2): replacement, rehobilitotion or reconstruction of a
structure or facility, in kind, on the same site, including upgrading buildings to meet building, energy, or
fire codes unless such action meets or exceeds any of the thresholds in section 617.4 of this Part.

Please consider adding this item to the next available meeting of the finance and audit committee

Respectfully,

John M. Schultheis, P.E

City Engineer

Steve Noble, Mayor
Amanda Bruck, Office of Community Development
John Tuey, Comptroller

Cc:

City Flall . 420 l]roadway ' Kingston, New York 12401 -(84$ 334-3967. www.kingston-ny.gov





RESOLUTION 218 of 2021

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
KINGSTON, NEW YORK, REQUESTING THE COMMON COUNCIL TO
ACCEPT THE 2O2O AUDITED FINAIICIALS AS PREPARED BY RBT
CPA'S

Sponsored By: Finance/Audit Committee: Alderman: Scott-
Childress, Tallerman, Davis, Hirsch, Schabot

WHEREAS, the City has received its independent audit report for the
calendar year 2020 from RBT CPA's LLP.

NOW THEREF'ORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That the Audit Report for the calendar year 2020 prepared by
RBT CPA's LLP be accepted.

SECTION 2 . This resolution shall take effect immediately.

Submitted to the Mayor this _ day of Approved by the Mayor this _ day of

2021 202t

Elisa Tinti, City Clerk

Adopted by Council on

Steven T. Noble, Mayor

.2021
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FINANCE AND AUDIT
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NEOUSST DN$CEJPTION

INTERNAL TRANSFER 

-
AUTHORIZATION X
CLAIMS

CONTINGENCY TRANSFER
BUDGET MODIFICATION

ZONING

TRANSFER_
BONDING REQUEST 

-OTHER

Description:

Request the Common Council to accept the RBT CPA's independent auditors reporl for the year ended

December 3I,2020.

DATE: I0l1l202l

Estimated Financial Impact: $0

DEPARTMENT: Comptroller

S

Motion

Seconded

Action Required

SEQRA Decision:
Type I Action
Type II Action
Unlisted Action

Negative Declaration of Environmental Significance: 

-Conditioned Negative Declaration: _

Seek Lead Agency Status: _

Committee Vote YES
NO

Reynolds Scott Childress, Ward 3,

Chairman

Don Tallerman, Ward 5

Anthony Davis, Ward 6

Michele Hirsch, Ward 9

Steven Schabot, Ward 8Positive Declaration of Environmental Significance: _-





FINANCIAL REPORT
AUDITED

CITY OF KINGSTONO NEW YOR.K
For the Year Ended December 3l,2020

Aaditedfor:

Common Council
CITV OF KINGST'ON, NEW VORK

Audited by:

RtsT CPAs" LLP
I I Racquet Road

Newburgh, NY 12550

(84s) s67-e000
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Members of the Common Council
City of Kingston, New York
420 Broadway
Kingston, New York 12401

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Kingston, New York, (the "City") as of and for the year ended December 31,2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of the City's Water Fund, as shown on the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Balance - Proprietary Funds, and the financial statements of the discretely presented component units, which
cumulatively represent l9o/o of the assets, 9Yo of net position and llo/o of the revenues of the reporting entity. Those
statements were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been fumished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to
the amounts included for the Water Fund and the discretely presented component units, are based solely on the reports of the
other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or effor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation ofthe financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

rbtcBot.eon:

ll Rocquel Rood
Nevburgh, NY 12550
T: (0451 567-9OO0
F: (8.45) 567-9226

2676 South Food, Suile lo'l
Poughkeepsie, NY t260t

T: (045) 465-5510
F: (E45) 405-55d7

P.O. Box 309
5l Sullivan Sireel

Wurlsboro, NY 12790
T: (6d5) S66'5656
F: (6451 660-2709

J40 l,lsdison Avenue
19th Flsor

Ne\,/ York! NY lOl7I
Tr (7lE) 772-0650
F: t7t6) 772-O85i



Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements refened to above present

fairly, inall material respects, the respective financial position of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, the

aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Kingston, New York, as of December3l,2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, the

cash flows thereoffor the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters

Requir ed Supp lementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and

analysis, budgetary comparisons, and schedules of changes in the City's total other postemployment benefit liability
("OPEB") and related ratios, OPEB contributions and assumptions, proportionate share of the net pension liability and related

ratios, and employer contributions on pages 4-11 and 52-56be presented to supplementthe basic financial statements. Such

information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards

Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an

appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required

supplimentary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which

consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for

consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained

during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information

because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Supplementary I nformati o n

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the City's basic financial statements. The accompanying

schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2, U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Unifonm Guidance) and Title 17,

Part 43 of NYCRR, and schedule of indebtedness are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part

of the basic financial statements. The schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate

directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has

been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional

procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records

used to prepare the basic financial statement, or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures

in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedules of
indebtedness and expenditures offederal awards and state transportation assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in

relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note XV to the financial statements, the spread of the global pandemic, coronavirus disease (COVID-l9), has

created economic uncertainty.

As described in Note XVI, the City implemented GASB 84, Fiduciary Activities for the year ended December 31, 2020. This

implementation required that the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position be presented along with the Statement ofNet
Position - Fiduciary Fund. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

2



Other Reporting Required by Government Audiling Stundards

ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report, dated September 29,2021, on our
consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its comptiance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to deicribe the
scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

KBC| C(PA,, LL(P

Newburgh, NY
September 29,2021

J



CITY OF'KINGSTON, NEW YORK
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY TNFORMATION
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The accompanying management discussion and analysis of the City of Kingston's (the "City") financial performance has been

prepared to provide an overview of the Cify's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2020. This discussion and

analysis is only an introduction and should be read in conjunction with the City's financial statements.

Requests For Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City's finances for those with an interest in this area. Questions

conceming any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to John Tuey,

Comptroller, City of Kingston, 420 Broadway, Kingston, NY 12401 .

2020 Financial Hightights

- The City's Governmental net position (defined as assets plus defened outflows less liabilities and deferred inflows)

was a negative $(105,763,663) at December 31.
- The govemmental total net position decreased by $2,348,907 for the year ending December 31,2020.
- At Dicember 31, the proportionate share of the net pension liability for both retirement systems was included in total

liabilities in the amount of $20,030,434.
- As of the close of the year, the City's governmental funds reported an ending fund balance of $3,703,477, a decrease

of $ I ,071 ,l 63 in comparison with the prior year.

- As of the close of the year, the City's Proprietary Funds reported an ending net position of $8,457,470, an increase of
5484,047 in comparison with the prior year.

- At the end of the year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $9,226,690.
- At the end ofthe year, unrestricted net position for the Proprietary Funds was a negative ($10,956,136).

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The City's basic

financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements,2) fund financial statements, and

3) notes to the financial statements. The basic financial statements present two different views of the City's financial position

through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. Each view will be explained in more detail

following this narrative. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplementary information

that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of the City.

4



CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Required Components of the Citv's Basic Financial Statements

Figure 1

Summary Detail

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements. They provide
both short and long-term information about the City's financial status.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the individual parts of the
City's govemment. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There are two parts to the
Fund Financial Statements, they include: 1) the govemmental, proprietary and fiduciary fund statements and 2) reconciliations
to the government-wide financial statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in detail some of
the data contained in those statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The govemment-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the City's finances,
similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The govemment-wide statements provide short and
long-term information about the City's financial status as a whole.

The two govemment-wide statements report the City's net position and how it has changed. Net position is the difference
between the City's total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the City's financial condition.

The governmental activities include most of the City's basic services such as public safety, road maintenance and
administration. Property taxes, sales tax, charges for services and state aid finance most of these activities.
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City's most significant activities. A fund is a group of self-

balancing accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or

objectivei. The City, like all other governmental entities in New York, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance

with finance-related legal requirements, such as New York State general municipal law and local finance law or the City's
budget ordinance.

Governmental Funds - Govemmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as govemmental activities in the

govemment-wide financial statements. Al1 of the City's basic services are accounted for in govemmental funds. These funds

focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for

spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting,

which provides a short-term spending focus. As a result, the govemmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed

short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resourcss available to finance the City's
programs. The relationship between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) and govemmental funds is described in reconciliations that are a part of the fund financial statements.

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds are funds used to account for business-type activities. The proprietary fund financial

statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses are

recognized when incurred.

Fiduciary Funds - The City acts in a fiduciary capacity for assets that are held for the benefit of others, such as police

evidence. These funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements because the City cannot use these assets

to finance operations.

The City adopts an annual budget for certain funds as required by municipal law. The budget is a legally adopted document

that incorporates input from the citizens and management of the City, and the decisions of the Council about which services to

provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes management to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these

current period activities. The budgetary comparison demonstrates how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and

whether or not the City succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary

comparison schedule uses the modified accrual basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language and

classifications as the legal budget document. The schedule shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the City

Council; 2) the final budget as amended by the City Council; 3) the actual revenues, expenditures and ending balances; and 4)

the variance between the final budget and actual revenues and expenditures. The schedule is presented as required

supplementary information.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essentiat to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide

and fund financial statements.
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATTON
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

NET POSITION

Current Assets
Capital Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

s%
2020 2019 Churg" Ch*tr_

55,972,701 51,211,789 4,760,912 9.30yo
83,122,769 76,837,371 6,285,398 8.tgyo

40.261.792 l3 -372. 26.888.889 201.07Yo

15,562,370 13,690,250 1,872,120 13.67yo
175,966,975 169,854,10t 6,112,874 3.60yo
191,529,345 183,544,351 7,984,994 4.35yo

37 -61 8-259.012 29.3s9.867 355.49Yo

37,076,465
919,134

33,641,642
8l 8,206

36

3,434,823
100,928

lO.21Yo

12.34%o

5

4.llYo

Managementts Explanation of Changes

The increase in capital assets is primarily due to additional capital purchases and capital project related items. Total liabilities
primarily increased due to an increase in net pension liability of approximately $16 million during the year and due to an
increase in OPEB liability of over $9 million. Deferred inflows and outflows also increased related to similar pension and
OPEB changes.

663) $ (101.593.089)
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSN

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Yo$

2020 Yo 2019 Yo Chanse

Revenues:
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services
Operating and Capital Grants

General Revenues:
Real Property Taxes
Real Property Tax Items
Non Property Taxes
Use of Money and Propefty
State Aid
Sale of Property and Compensation for Loss

Loss on Disposal of Assets
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenses:
General Govemment
Public Safety
Public Health
Transportation
Economic Assistance and Opportunity
Culture and Recreation
Home and Community Services
Interest on Debt

Total Expenses

49.206.452 100.00%0 48.048.923 100.00% 1.157

$ 3,021,144
7,O47,796

17,683,441
994,722

15,380,227
37,574

3,609,789
106,753

6.14"/" $ 3,720,182
14.320 6,111,042

7.74vo $ (699,038)
l2.72Yo 936,754

r"32s,006

35.93o/"
2.02o/o

31.260/o

0.08%
7.34010

0.220
0.00%
2-690/"

17,708,048
78s,970

14,649,632
214,207

3,693,154
212,368

(336,277)
1.290-597

36.85Yo
1.64Yo

30.49Yo

0.45o/o

7.69Yo

0.440h
-0.71o/o

2.69Y"

(24,607)
208,752
730,595

(176,633)
(83,365)

( 1 05,61 5)
336,277
34,409

-18.79Yo
15.33Vo

-0.l4Yo
26.56Yo

4.99Vo

-82.46Yo
-2.26Vo

-49.73Yo

100.00%
2.670/o

2.41o/o

8,361,267
260906,805

245,694
3,905,000
1,333,702
3,660,363
6,811,615

430,913

l6-22o/"
52.18o/o
0.48o/"
7.38Vo
2.59o/o
7.l0o/o

13.21"/o
0.84"/"

6,432,187
29,10t,869

208,649
4,732,199
1,599,23s
4,191,069
5,561,15 I

469.94s

12.30Vo
55.65Yo

0.40o/o

9.05Yo
3.060h
8.01%

10.63Yo

0.90Yo

1,929,080
(2,19s,064)

37,045
(927,199)
(26s,s33)
(530,706)

1,250,464

29.99o/o
-7.54Yo

17.75Yo

-19.59Vo
-16.60Yo

-12.66Vo
22.49Yo
-8.31o/o(39.032

51.555.359 100.007" 52.296304 100.00% -l.42Yo

Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position $ (2'348'907) g (4,247.381) 1,898,474 -44.7|Yo

Managementos Explanation of Changes

Total revenues in 2020 increased by 2.41o/o from 2019 primarily due to increase in operating and capital grants. This was due

to increase in state and federal assistance for transportation projects. Total expenses are down $740,945, l.42Y"ftom2019,
with the largest fluctuations being Public Safety (down $2,195,064,7.54o/o) and General Government (up $1,929,080,

29.99%). The increase in expenses were due to payroll, expenses related to additional state grants, and capital outlay.
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Governmental Funds Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds: The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows
and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. Specifically,
unassigned fund balance can be a useful measure of a govemment's net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current year, the unassigned fund balance of the
General Fund was $9,226,690. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare the unassigned fund
balancetototalfundexpenditures. Unassignedfundbalancerepresents23.l percentoftotalGeneralFundexpenditures.

At December 31,2020, the govemmental funds of the City reported a combined fund balance of $3,703,477, a 23 percent
decrease over the prior year end. Included in this change in fund balance are increases in the General fund and decreases in the
Special Grant, Capital Project and Debt Service Funds.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the year, the City revised the General Fund budget. Generally, budget
amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original
budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from extirnal
sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration - Governmental Activities

Capital Assets: The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of December 31, 2020 totaled
$55,972,701 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include land, construction in progress, buildings, improvements,
infrastructure, and machinery and equipment.

Debt: As of December 31,2020, the City had total debt outstanding for its governmental activities of $18,896,236. The debt
is backed by the full faith and credit of the City. The City's governmental debt increased by $1,326,089 during the 2020 year.

For more detailed information on capital assets and long-term debt, see the notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GOVERNMENT.WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

NET POSITION

$%
2020 2Ol9 Change Change

Current Assets
Capital Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

44,403,649 43,988,770 414,879 0.94o/o

5.170.810 1.768"919 3-401.891 192.3r%

12,921,215
39.079.380

7,846,745
4t-299.723

5,074,470
0220.343\

64.67Vo

-5.38o/o

3.761.204 1.183"010 2.s78_194 217.94Yo

19,413,606 18,757,944 655,662 350Vo

- 1,276,864 (1,276,864) -100.00%
(10-9s6.t36) (14.053.656) 3^097.520 -22.04Vo

s ii,4s7,no $ 5981,

As shown in the above table, proprietary funds' curent assets increased by $4,091,869 from 2019 to 2020 primarily due to

increase in cash equivalent proceeds from the issuance of debt. Short-term liabilities also increased from 2019 to 2020 by

$5,074,470 due an increase in Bond Anticipation Notes Payable. Overall, net position increased by $2,476,318 from 2019 to

2020. As of December 31,2020, net position was $8,457,470.
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GOVERNMENT.WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

2020 2019

o//o$

Change Change
Revenues
Charges for Services
Other Revenues

Total Revenues
Expenses

Personal Services and Benefits
Maintenance and Operating Costs
Depreciation
Interest and Other

Total Expenses
Change in Net Position

Net Position - Ending

$ 9,855,126
815.366

$ 9,608,662
-o43,984

$ 246,464
Q"228"618\

2.57Yo
-73.21o/o3

10.670.492 12.652-646 (r,982.154\ -15.670/o

5,797,433
1,953,507
1,866,1 15

s79,390

5,200,534
2,224,148
1,865,601

687.253

586,899
(270,641)

514
fl07.863)

ll.29yo
-12.l7o/o

0.03o/"
-15.69yo

I 9 36
110
t52

20
191

2.09Yo

-81.91Y"7
$ 5 l8 41

As shown in the above table, proprietary funds' revenues decreased by $1,982,154 from 2019 to 2020 primarrly due to a
decrease in federal aid. Expenses increased from 2019 to2020 by $208,909 due to an increase in personal services.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration - Proprietary Funds

Capital Assets: The City's investment in capital assets for its business activities as of December 31,2020 totaled $44,403,649
(net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment,
infrastructure and construction in progress.

Debt: As of December 31,2020, the City had total debt outstanding pertaining to its business-type activities of $29,090,260.
The debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the City. The City's total long-term debt pertaining to those business-type
activities increased by $3,859,434 during the 2020 yeu.

For more detailed information on capital assets and long-term debt, see the notes to the basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF NET POSTTION
DECf,MBER 31,2020

ASSETS
Cash And Cash Equivalents
Cash And Cash Equivalents, long term

Cash - Restricted

Taxes Receivable (Note I H)
Due From Other Governments
Notes Receivable (Note I I)
Other Receivables

Inventories
Prepaid Items

Intemal Balances

Long Term Receivables

Capital Assets, not being depreciated

Capital Assets, being depreciated, net

Total Capital Assets, net (Note V)

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
OPEB (Note VII)
Other
Pension Qllote VI)

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES

TOTAL
PRIMARY

GOVERNMENT
COMPONENT

UNITS

$ 7,338,862 $ 4,600,277 $

s,856,509

1,067,957

2,049,931
180,248
251,493
279,744

$ 3,591,918

568,117

19,848

99,818
1,455

758.667

876,490
5,836,406
3,970,377
t,07t,231
6,565,792

9,204
1,761,456
(279,744)

11,939,739
5,856,509

876,490
5,836,406
5,038,328
1,071,231
8,614,623

189,452

2,o12,g4g

27.150.068 14.285.059 41.435.127 s.039.823

9,023,576
47.949"125

11,873,677
32_529-972

19,897,253 2,784,953
126.48680.479

55.972"701 44.403.649 100"3 2-911.439

83.122.769 58 -688-708 141.81t.477 7 95 1.262

26,903,587 3,391,241
10,000

30,294,828
10,000

15"127.77413.358.205 769 -569
40.261.792 5,170,8 r0 45.432"602

123.384.561 63 -8s9-518 187 "244.079 7 95 1.262

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF'KINGSTON, NEW YORK
STATEMENT OF NET POSTTTON - (CONTTNUED)
DECEMBER 31,2020

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES

TOTAL
PRIMARY

GOVERNMENT
COMPONENT

UNITS
LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Governments

Non-Current Liabil ities:
Due and Payable Within One Year:

Bond Anticipation Notes Payable (Note VIII)
Loans Payable
Landfill Remediation Liability (Note IX)
Installment Obligations Payable (Nore IX)
Bonds Payable (Note IX)

Due and Payable More Than One Year:
Loans Payable
Bond Anticipation Notes Payable (Note XI)
Landfi ll Remediation Liability (Note IX)
Installment Obligations Payable (Note IX)
Bonds Payable (Note IX)
Compensated Absence Liability (Note IX)
Share of Net Pension Liability (Note VI)
Other Post-Employment Benefits (Note VII)

Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Revenue
OPEB (Note VII)
Pension (Note VI)

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Economic and Community Development
Restricted for Special Purposes
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

$ 2,825,147 $

403,997
2,611,719

8,456,521

539,557 $

309,874
3,364,704 $

713,771
2,611,719

34,303
351,769

2,502,229

63,450
4,267

147,187

400,000

9,832,442 19,299,963

378,715
100,61I

9,109,321
3,034,311

20,030,434
143.314.s83

254,484
1,368,735

1,821,679

263,164
15,549,760

439,866
2,404,599

18.85

1,821,679

378,715
363,775

24,658,081
3,474,177

22,435,033
162.171"271

34,303
97,299

1,133,494

191.529.345 5t.640"844 243.170.189 614,904

37,r73,1s7
445.722

96,476
3,619,633

46.09s

96,476
40,791,790

491.8t7

478,336

37.618-879 3.761.204 41.380.083 478,336

229.148.224 5s.402.048 284"550^272 t,093,240

37,076,465 19,413,606 54,927,077 2,863,141
42,644 - 42,644

876,490 - 876,490 788,531
(143,759,262\ (10,956,136) (153,t52,404) 3,206,350

$ (105,?63,663) $ 8

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
STATEMENT OF' ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2O2O

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

CHARGES
FOR SERVICES

OPERATING
GRANTS AND

CAPITAL
GRANTS AND

CONTRIBUTIONS

BUSINESS-
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES
COMPONENT

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Activities:

General Government Support
Public Safety
Health
Transportation
Economic Assistance & Opportunity
Culture and Recreation
Home and Community Services

EXPENSES

$ (8,361,267)
(26,906,805)

(245,6e4)
(3,805,000)
(t,333,702)
(3,660,363)
(6,811,615)

433,739
1,410,784

43,309
297,603
t63,947
3 55,38 l
3 16,38 I

22,794 $

54,998
s9,128

UTIONS

274,963
231,937

237,308

4,493,682
t92,124

1,480,862

(7,904,734)
(25,203,715)

(143,2s7)
986,285

(702,668)
(3,073,04s)
(s,014,372)

TOTAL

s (7,904,734) $

(25,203,7 15)
(143,257)
986,28s

(702,668)
(3,073,045)
(5,0t4,372)

$ $$ $

on Debt
Total

Business-type Activites:
Water Fund
Sewer Fund

43 l3
55 02t 144

(5,190,777) 4,937,749

l3 913

556,84',1 303,8 l9 03,3

I
819
009

r,486,41186995
I

ll t4
Total Activities

Units:
Kingston Local Development Corp. $ (l 10,413) S 122,646 $

63 153 5

82845

$ r2,233
Land Inc.

Total Com ent Units
858

Real Property Taxes
Real Property Tax Items
Non-Properfy Tax Items
Use of Money and Property
Sale ofProperty
Miscellaneous
State Aid

Total General Revenues
Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning
Cumulative Etl'ect and Prior Period Adjustment (Note XVI)
Net Position - Beginning, as restated
Net Position - Ending

C 251 4l
263,974s99

17,683,44t
994,722

15,380,227
37,574

106,753
1,325,006

17,683,441
994,722

15,380,227
53,848

r17,698
r,325,006

16,274
10,945

6,667

609 789

(2,348,907) 484,047 ( 1,864,860) 270,64r
(101,593,089) 5,98r,152 (9s,611,937)

3 789

6,587,3 81

4t 75 7 23 JJ

02285

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2020

General
Special
Grant

Capital
Proiects

Debt
Service

Total
Governmental

Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Receivables:

Taxes
Other

lnventory
Notes Receivable (Note I I)
Due from Other Funds (Note IV)
Due from Other Govemments
State and Federal Receivable

s 6,916,657
876,490

5,836,406
I,085,543

9,204

4,648,107
3,514,561
I,559,591

22,733
123,304

676,544
23,077

3,797,354

289,270
410,000

s 7,338,862
876,490

s,836,406
1,085,543

9,204
1,071,231
5,613,921
3,970,371
5,480,249

$ 44,560 $ 49,638 $ 328,007

1,071,231

724 713
Total Assets

LIABILITTES, DEFFERED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 1,704,147 $ 9,201 1,106,222

Accrued Liabilities 238,794 - 19,471

Bond Anticipation Notes Payable (Note VIID 8,456,521
Due to Other Funds (Note IV) 1,077,901 - 4,598,532

$ 5,577
2,472

713

$ 2,82s,147
260,737

8,456,521
5,893,66572 ,232

Due to Other Govemments
Total Liabilities

123
7 JJ 16 180 746 2l

5"332.092 1 -086-596 6.431.082Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balance:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned Appropriated
Assigned Unappropriated
Unassigned

733,917
876,490

1,467,557
200,7r0

9.226.690
42,644 789,602

733,917
876,490

t,467,557
1,03?,9s6
(407,443)(9,634,133)

Total Fund Balance 133

Total Liabilities,
Inflows ofResources and Fund Balances s 2s-171.272 $ 1.26r-828 $ 4.546.613 $ r-027,277 s 32.006.990

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CITY OF'KINGSTON, NEW YORK
RECONCILIATION OF THE TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31,2020

Total
Governmental

Funds

Long-Term
Assets and
Liabilities

Reclassifications
and Statement of Net

Eliminations PositionTotals
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Receivables:

Taxes
Other

Inventory
Notes Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Due from Other Governments
Prepaid Expenses
Capital Assets, net
Deferred Outflows of Resources - OPEB
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension

5,836,406
6,565,792

9,204
1,071,231
5,613,921
3,970,371

724,7t3

5,836,406
6,s65,792

9,204
1,071,231

3s9,751
3,970,371
1,761,456

55,972,701
26,903,587

$ 7,338,862 $
876,490

$ $ 7,338,862
876,490

(s,2s4,170)

1,036,743
55,972,701
26,903,587

5 5
Total Assets and Deferred

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Bond Anticipation Notes Payable
Landfi ll Remediation Payable
Installment Obligations Payable
Bonds Payable
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Governments
Compensated Absences
Net Pension Liability-Proportionate Share
Other Postemp loyment Benefits
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Deferred Revenue
Deferred Inflows of Resources - OPEB

g 2,825,147
260,737

8,456,s21

s,893,665
4,436,361

6,431,082

1 43,1 60

413,018
197,900

10,241,815

$ 2,82s,t47
403,897

8,456,521
413,01 8

197,900
10,241,815

639,495
2,611,719
3,034,3 I I

20,030,434
143,314,583

$$

(s,254,170)
(1,824,642)
3,034,31 l

20,030,434
143,314,583

(6,431,082)
37,173,t57

Deferred lnflows of Resources - Pension 445 722
37,173,157

445.722
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 28.303.513 206.738.376 (5.254.1 70) 229.787.719

Fund Balances/Net Position J 77 109 7

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
l6
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2O2O

General Snecial Grant
Capital
Proiects Debt Service

Total
Governmental

Funds

Revenues:
Real Property Taxes
Real Property Tax Items
Non Property Tax ltems
Departmental Income
Intergovemmental Charges
Use of Money and Property
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Sale of Property and Compensation for Loss
Miscellaneous
State Aid
Federal Aid

$ $17,545,839
994,722

15,380,227
1,541,47 4

386,1 16
39,162

989,176
63,149

106,753
4,566,670
1,t36,978

$-

n7,2;3
2,370,300

$ 17,545,839
994,722

15,380,227
1,541,474

386,1 l6
39,344

989,r76
63,149

106,753
4,776,583
3,596,038

$

164l8

32,640
88,760

163 587 22 731
04

3 59

Total Revenues 840 5 49

Expenditures:
General Govemment
Public Safety
Health
Transportation
Economic Assistance and Opportunity
Culture and Recreation
Home and Community Services
Employee Benefits
Capital Outlay
Debt Service

4,055,884
14,016,093

98,203
1,366,721

s61,393
1,462,181
2,540,890

14,248,152
919,737
599.988

857,243

72,513
5,64_6

t,sig
13,983

8,091,965
68.669

19,910 4,148,307
14,021,739

98,203
1,366,721

561,393
1,466,130
3,412,116

14,248,152
9,01r,702
2.r63.6801.495.023

857 725 1

) ofRevenues
3.044.430 48.403) Q.852.421) fi.514. ( 1 -471 -163\C)ver

Other Financing Sources/(Uses) :

BANS Redeemed from Appropriations
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

400,000 400,000
1,431,793

(r.431.793)
t,431,793

(r"431"793)
Total C)ther Sources/(Uses) fl"431.793) 400.000 1.43r.793 400.000

in Fund Balances
Fund Balance - Beginning
Cumulative Effect
Fund

10,722,123

of Year as restated 10 727

191,04_7 ,t81,712) 872,57_8

047 181 71 872 78 77

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
RECONCILIATION OF'THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN F'UND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL F'UNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF'ACTIVITTES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2020 'lotal Long-'I-erm Long-'l'erm

Governmental Revenue, Capital Asset Debt
Funds Expenses Transactions Transactions

Revenues:
Real Propertli Taxes
Real Properly Tax Items
Non Property Tax Items
Departmental Income
IntergovernmentaVGrant Income
Use of Money and Property
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Sale ofProperly
Loss on Disposal of Assets
Miscellaneous
State and Federal Aid

137,602 $ $

Total Revenues 49 0 179.472
Expenditures:

General Government
Public Safety
Health
Transportation
Economic Assistance and Opportunity
Culture and Recreation
Home and Community Services
Capital Outlay
Employee Benefits
Debt Service

t,271,869

(8s,684)

Total Expenditures 50,498.143 7.629.468 (4.760.912\ (1.811.340)
Excess/(Defi cienoy) of Revenues

Over Expenditures (1,471,163\ (7,449,996\ 4,760,912 1,811,340
Other Financing Sources/(Uses) :

BANS Redeemed from Appropriations
Operating Transfers In

(400,000)

Re classifications
and Eliminations

Statement of
Activities Totals

s 17,545,839 $

994,722
15,380,227
|,541,474

386,1 16

39,344
989,176

63,149
106,753

4,776,583
7,203,s97

4,t48,307
14,02t,739

98,203
1,366,72r

561,393
1,466,r30
3,412,116
9,011,702

14,248,152
2.163.680

400,000
1,431,793

99,251

(1,770)

(28,25r)
(27,360)

7,636,s79
(7.lll)

640,85 I

623,42s

521,228
1,193,417

(9,01r,702)

0.725.656\
(21,884,731)

(1,431,793)

t7,683,44t
994,722

15,380,227
r,640,72s

386,1 16

37,574
989,t76

63,149
106,753

4,748,332
7.176.237

49.206"452

430.913
5 1.555.359

(2.348.907)

$$

3,572,109
12,261,641

147,491
1,166,410

772,309
1,673,005
2,291,766

8,36t,267
26,906,805

245,694
3,805,000
r,333,702
3,660,363
6,81 I,615

Transf-ers Out 793
400

See accompanying notes.to the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2020

WATER SEWER

ASSETS
Cash And Cash Equivalents
Cash And Cash Equivalents, long term
Due From Other Governments
Charges For Services
Inventories
Prepaid Items

$ 1,109,700
5,856,509

12,729
1,080,265

180,248
207,395

$ 3,490,s77

1,055,228
968,566

s 4,600,277
5,856,509
1,067,957
2,048,831

180,248
2s1,493
639.495

44,098
639"495Due from Other Funds fNote IV)

8-446_846 6.197.964 14-644-810

Capital Assets, not being depreciated 5,727,903 6,145,774 11,873,677

net 32
17,7 44,235 9,414

l3
Total Capital Assets (Note V)

26. l9 I .08 1 32.857.378

44,403,649

59.048.459Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
OPEB (Note VII)
Other

1,678,353 1,712,888
10,000

3,391,241
10,000

Pension
2.609.28 ,< 1.5

69
- 170-810

83 9

Deferred Outflows of Resources 3 5

IOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 28.800.364 35.418.905 64.219.269

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 3t,2020

WATER
FUND

SEWER
FUND TOTAL

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds (Note IV)
Other Postemployment Benefits (Note IX)
Bond Anticipation Notes Payable (Note VIIf
Current Portion of Bonds, Notes, and Loans Payable (Note IX)

1tt,21t
I 50,71 8

2,407
248,800

5,83 1,500
s67,935

$ 539,557
309,874
359,7sr
248,800

9,832,442
1,623,215

$$ 428,346
1 59,1 56

357,344

4,000,942
I,055,280

Absence
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities:
Bond Anticipation Notes Payable (Note IX)
Compensated Absence Liability (Note IX)
Bonds, Notes, and Loans Payable (Note IX)
Other Postemployment Benefits (Note IX)

7
147

1,356,000
172,592

7,065,723
9,483,390

465,679
2s9,698

8,747,20t
9,124,498

7 576
l5

1,821,679
432,290

15,812,924
18,607,888

Share of Net Pension ote 26s
l9 709

95
19 7lTotal Non-Current Liabilities

Total
80

26"262-856 25-737 -739 s2.000.595

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Other
OPEB (Note VII) 1,251,907

96,476
2,366,726

96,476
3,618,633

Pension 0
157

2t 845 46
761Total ofResources

TOTAL
OF RESOURCES

AND DEFERRED
27.539.013 28.222_786 55"761.799

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

7,023,294 12,390,312 19,413,606
761

Net 57

See accompanying noteslo the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF'REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2O2O

WATER
FUND

SEWER
FUND TOTAL

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Program Grants and Subsidies
Other Revenue

$ 4,794,780

83.228

s,060,346
3,436

s3,968

$ 9,855,126
3,436

137,196

Total Ooeratins Revenues 4.878.008 5.117.750 9"995"7s8

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personal Services
Real Property Taxes
Maintenance, Operations and Contractual Services

3,261,588
326,166
616,929
763.374

2.525,845 5,787,433
326,166

1,627,341
1"866.1 15

1,0r0,412
1"102.741Depreciation

Total Ooeratins Expenses 4.968.057 4.638.998 9.607.055

Net Operating Income/(Loss) (90.049) 478,752 388.703

Non-Operating Income and (Expense)
Rental Income
Federal Grant Revenue
State Grant Revenue
Interest Income
Sale of Property and Compensation for Loss

Interest on Bonds and Notes

59,741

556,847
7,788
5,9t7

30,927

8,486
5,028

59,741
30,927

556,847
16,274
10,94s

317 -524 166-523

79
95

484_047

70

Total N Income and 407 573

Chanse in Net Position

Net Positiono beginning 943,827 5,037,325

1.992.271

5,981,152

1,992,27rPrior Period Adiustment (Note XVI)
Net
Net

as restated 943 7 596 7

$ 7
23973
70$l

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY F'UNDS
DECEMBER 31,2020

WATER
FUND

SEWER
FUND TOTAL

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash Received From Users
Cash Paid To Employees

$ 4,811,335
(r,586,570)

5, I 50,98 I
(2,s2s,84s)
1.272.610

9,962,316
(4,112,415)

(675.969)

$ $

Cash Paid For Oneratins Expenses fi -948-5 9)7
Net Cash Provided by Operatins Activities 1,276,186 2,162,149 3,438,33s

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds From Capital Debt
Proceeds From Capital Debt - Bond Premium
Proceeds From Sale of Capital Assets
Federal Grant Revenue
State Grant Revenue
Purchase of Fixed Assets
lnterest Payments on Bonded Indebtedness

5,028
864,656

(5,340)
(s29,572)
(363,802)
.084"928)

5,655,831
29,626
17,733

864,656
538,778

(3,160,695)
(s60,1 93)

/L-945-291\

5,585,576
29,626
12,705

70,255

Princioal Pavments on Bonded Indebtedness

544,118
(2,631,123)

(196,391)
r860-363)

Net Cash Used by
Caoital and Related Financing Activities 2.484.148 .043.703) 1.440.445

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Rental Income
Interest Received

59,741
7.788 8"486

s9,741

16,274
Net Cash Provided trv Investins Activities 67 -s29 8,486 76.015

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,827,863 1,126,932 4,954,795

96 3 s77$1
Cash and Cash uivalents at Janua 2020

and Cash uivalents at

Reconciliation Of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income

138 2 5

$ (90,049)$478,7s2$388,703

763,374 1,1Q2,741 1,866,1 I 5

2020

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease (Increase) in Receivables
Decrease (Increase) in Inventories
Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Items
Decrease (Increase) in Due From Other Funds
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
lncrease (Decrease) in Deferred Outflows/lnflows, net
Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Obligation
Increase (Decrease) in Other Postemployment Benefits
Increase(Decrease) in Accrued Expenses

and Other Liabilities

2,165
122,343
(49,926)
231,041
835,1 17

(2,s70,714)

(33,442)
(17,484)
46,685

121,706
50,749

(823,6e7)
1,804,793

(1,930,139)

(66,673)
(t7,484)
44,520

(637)
100,675

( 1,0s4,73 8)
969,676
640,575

33,231

( 13,053) 1.977.399 1,964,346

Net Cash Provided bv Operatine Activities s 1.276.186 $ 162.149 $ 3.438.335

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEWYORK
STATEMENT OF' NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNI)
DECEMBER 31,2020

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

NET POSITION
Held in Trust

CUSTODIAL
FUND

$ 293.012

s 293,012

$ 293,012

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
DECf,MBER 31,2020

CUSTODIAL

EARNINGS
Police Evidence $

Change in Net Position
Net Position Held in Trust - Beginning

Net Position Held in Trust - Ending

293,012

$ 293.012

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Kingston, New York, (the "City") was establish ed in 1872, and operates in accordance with its Charter

and the various other applicable laws of the State of New York. The City operates under a Mayor/Council form of
government. The Common Council is the legislative body responsible for overall operations, the Mayor serves as

chief executive officer and the Comptroller serves as chief financial officer. The City provides the following

services to its residents: public safety, transportation, economic opportunity and development, culture and

recreation, home and community services and general and administrative support.

The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary govemment, which is the City, b) organizations for which

the City is financially accountable and c) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their

relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be

misleading or incomplete as set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB")'

In evaluating how to define the City, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential

component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the City's reporting entity was made by

applying the criteria set forth by GASB, including legal standing, fiscal dependency and financial accountability.

Based upon the application of these criteria, the following component units are included in the City's reporting

entity because of their operational or financial relationship with the City.

The City of Kingston Local Development Corporation (the *KLDC'), a not-for-profit corporation which was

incorpoiated on June 1, lgg4, administers economic development loans for businesses within the City of Kingston.

It alsb developed and operates a business park for the City. It is governed by a board which is appointed by the

Mayor. The City of Kingston Local Development Corporation financial statements are available at its offrces located

at Kingston City Uall, 420 Broadway, Kingston, New York. The KLDC is included in the City of Kingston's

reporting entity as a discretely presented component unit. See Note XII, Related Parfy Transactions.

The Kingston City Land Bank, Inc. (the "Land Bank"), a not-for-profit corporation, was incorporated on November
g, 2019 for the purpose of acquiring title to City-owned and other distressed properties in the City of Kingston,

removing barriers to redevelopment, and returning them to the tax rolls in viable condition under sound management

and ownirship. It is govemed by a board which includes, and is appointed by, the Mayor. The Land Bank's financial

statements are available at its office at City Hall, 420 Broadway, Kingston, NY. The Land Bank is included in the

City of Kingston's reporting entity as a discretely presented component unit. See Note XII, Related Party

Transactions.

The Kingston-Ulster Empire Zone was created by New York State to foster the creation of jobs, enhance the

propertylax base and .n.ourug. investment. The Mayor appoints the majority of the board. Activity for the

kingston-Ulster Empire Zone was minimal for the past year as the program is no longer supported by New York

State. Therefore, since financial statements have not been prepared, the limited Empire Zone information has not

been included in these financial statements'

The Dietz Stadium had been jointly administered with the Kingston City School District. As of September 19, 2079,

the City took over management of the stadium. See Note XII, Related Party Transactions.

The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America for govemmental units as established by the GASB. The notes to the financial statements are an integral

part of the statements and are intended to be read with them.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statements of net position and activities) report information on

all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has

been removed from these statements. Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes and

intergovernmental revenue.
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEWYORK
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES_CONTINUED

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements - Continued

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit
from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2)grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
Major individual funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The govemment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the yeai in
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: l) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special
assessments' Intemally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.

Propeffy taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current period. Only the portion of special
assessments receivable due within the current period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the
current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by
the govemment.

The City reports the following major funds:

I ) Govemmental Funds - The focus of the governmental funds' measurement (in the fund statements) is upon
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of
financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following are the City's major governmental fund
types:

a) General Fund - the principal operating fund and includes all operations not accounted for and
reported in another fund.

b) Special Revenue Fund - used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted or committed to expenditures for specific purposes other than debt service or
capital projects. This fund is used to account for the activities of the Community Development
Office which are generally funded by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
("HUD").
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation - Continued

c) Debt Service Fund - used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,

committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest on general obligation long term

debt. Debt Service Funds are used when legally mandated for financial resources accumulated in a

reserye for payment of future principal and interest on long-term indebtedness.

d) Capital Projects Fund - used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,

committed, or assigned to expenditure for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities

and equipment (other than those financed by business-type/proprietary funds).

2) Proprietary Funds - The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income,

changes in net assets, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles are

similar to businesses in the private sector. Both of the City's proprietary funds are classified as enterprise

funds. Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is charged to

external useis for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely secured by a
pledge of the net .iu.nues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of providing services, including

lapital costs, is to be recovered with fees and charges or (c) establishes fees and charges based on a pricing

poiicy designed to recover similar costs. The City's Water and Sewer activities are accounted for as major

enterprise funds.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the govemmental or business-fype

activitiei categories. Non-major funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASB Statement No' 34

sets forth minlmum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund

category or the govemmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds. Although they do not

meei the criteria the City has elected to present the Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds as major.

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets which are held in a trust or custodial capacity for others and are, therefore,

not available to support City programs.

D. Pervasiveness of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

Statei o1 America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure ofcontingent assets and liabilities at the date ofthe financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those

esiimates. Estimates and assumptions are made in a variety of areas, including computation of other

postemployment benefits, compensated absences, potential contingent liabilities and useful lives of long-lived

assets.

E. Budgetary Data

Operatins budsets - must be submitted by the Mayor in the form of a tentative budget to the Common Council at

*.i. r"gutu. meeting in October for the following calendar year. The tentative budget includes proposed

expenditures and the proposed means of financing for the General and Sewer funds. After public hearings are

conducted to obtain taxpayer comments, the Common Council adopts the budgets. Once adopted, the Common

Council may amend the legally adopted budgets when unexpected modifications are required within NYS

guidelines.

Other funds - capital projects are budgeted over the life of the respective projects and are also subjected to the

Council review and approval process. Formal budgets are not required for the Water Fund (an enterprise fund);

however, a budget is prepared as a guideline for expenditures. Budgetary controls for the Community Development

office are established in accordance with applicable grant agreements which may cover more than one year.
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

E. Budgetary Data - continued

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of
monies are recorded for budgetary control purposes to reserye that portion of the applicable appropriations, is
employed as a control in preventing over expenditure of established appropriations. Open encumbrances are
reported as reservations of fund balance in the govemmental funds since they do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities and will be honored through budget appropriations in the subsequent year.

F. Property Taxes

The City of Kingston real properfy taxes are levied annually no later than December 31 and become a lien on
January 1. The City of Kingston real property taxes are due in two installments. The first installment is due 45 days
after the passage ofthe tax levy and the second is due 120 days later. Taxes for County purposes apportioned to the
area of the County inside the City of Kingston and the Library are levied together with the general taxes for the City
of Kingston on a single bill. The County and Library receive the full amount of their levies annually out of the first
amounts collected on the combined bills. The collection of County taxes levied on properties within the City of
Kingston and library taxes are enforced by the City. In addition, unpaid city school district taxes levied on properties
within the City of Kingston are tumed over to the City for enforcement.

G. Cash and Investments

The City's investment policies are govemed by State statutes. In addition, the City has its own written investment
policy. The City's monies must be deposited in FDlC-insured commercial banks or trust companies located within
the State. The City is authorized to use demand accounts and certificates of deposit. Permissible investments
include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, repurchase agreements and obligations of New York
State or its localities.

Collateral is required for demand deposits and certificates of deposit not covered by federal deposit insurance.
Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the United States and its agencies and obligations of
the State and its municipalities and school districts.

H. Taxes and Other Receivables, and Uncollectible Accounts

Significant receivables include amounts due from customers primarily for water and sewer charges. No allowance
for uncollectible accounts is maintained as uncollected accounts are added on to the subsequent year's tax bills. The
General Fund reimburses the utility funds for the full amount even though the City may not have actually received
payment.

At December 31, 2020, the City had total real property tax receivables of $5,836,406. On the fund financial
statements, the taxes are offset by defened inflows of resources in the amount of $4,818,318 forthe City portion.
The defened portion represents the tax liens which were not collected within the first sixty days of the subsequent
year. In the government-wide financial statements, property taxes receivable and related revenue include all amounts
due to the City, regardless of when received.

Other revenues totaling $1,612,764 are deferred in the govemmental fund financial statements as they were not
received within 60 days following year-end and, therefore, are unavailable to pay liabilities of the current period.
Other deferred revenue received after 60 days is recognized as revenue in the government-wide statements ifgrantor
eligibility requirements are met.
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CONTINUED

I. Notes Receivable

The following is a summary of notes receivable as of December 31,2020:

Homeowner Loans - The Housing Rehabilitation Program is a federally funded program for income

eligible homeowners in the City of Kingston offering up to $20,000 per household. The priority of the

program is to address health and safety issues, building code violations, and to reduce the cumulative

effects of deteriorating properties concentrated in certain neighborhoods of the City. It allows for an

interest-free, defened loan to the homeowner that is spread over a 10 year period. At the end of the tenth

year of owner-occupied homeownership, the loan is completely forgiven.

Balance Balance Due in One

l2l3l/2019 Additions
HomeownerLounr ffiIF -$ t€Jt3

Total Loans -$1,.o-9E798 -5,.]ffi

Reductions l2l3l/2020 Year
@$ (170,780) $ 1,071,231

$ (170,780) s t,o7t,23t $ 97,440

J. Internal Balances

Amounts due to and due from within the same fund type have been eliminated in the Govemment-wide statements.

See Note IV for a schedule detailing the interfund balances.

K. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventory is primarily composed of water meters and supplies

Prepaid items represent payments made by the City for which benefits extend beyond year end.

L. Capital Assets

Capital ass€ts are reported at historical cost. The City depreciates capital assets using the straight line method over

the estimated useful lives of the assets. Capitalization thresholds and estimated lives of assets reported in the

Government-wide statements for all assets are as follows:

Water Fund
@

Threshold Useful Life

All funds except Water
Capitalization Estimated

Threshold Useful Life
Buildings $ 20,000 40 years $ 5,000 15 - 40 years
Improvements 20,000 15 years 5,000 15 - 40 years

Machinery and Equipment 10,000 3 -10 years 5,000 3 - 40 years

M, Infrastructure

The City includes long-lived improvements to roads, property, sewer and water systems as capital assets in the

Govemment-wide statements. Infrastructure is reported at historical cost and is depreciated using the straight-line

method over the estimated useful lives.

Capitalization thresholds and estimated useful lives for infrastructure are as follows:
Capitalization Estimated

Threshold Useful Life
Roads -S- 2oPoo -Zd y."*
Sewer & Other Systems 20,00O 3O - 40 years
Water 5,000 15 - 40 Years
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CITY OF KINGSTON,NEW YORK
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES _ CONTINUED

N. Vested Employee Benefits

City employees are granted vacation and sick leave and eam compensatory absences in varying amounts. In the
event of termination or upon retirement, an employee may be entitled to payment for accumulated vacation and sick
leave and unused compensatory absences at various rates subject to certain maximum limitations. A liability for
accrued vacation and sick time is reflected in the Govemment-wide statements under the heading "Compensated
Absences." See Note IX.

The City employees participate in the New York State Employees' Retirement System and New York State Police
and Fire Retirement System. See Note VI.

In addition to providing pension benefits, the City provides health insurance coverage for retired employees. Health
care benefits are provided through an insurance company whose premiums are based on the benefits paid during the
year for the City. The City recognizes the cost of providing benefits by recording its share of insurance premiums as
a governmental fund expenditure in the year paid.

Substantially all of the City's employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age
with at least 10 or 20 years of service while working for the City. See Note VII.

O. Unemploymentlnsurance

City employees are covered by unemployment insurance. The City has chosen to discharge its liability to the New
York State Unemployment Insurance Fund by means of the benefit reimbursement method. This is a dollar-for-
dollar reimbursement to the Unemployment Insurance Fund for the benefits paid to former employees and charged
to the City's account. The City is exempt from federal unemployment insurance tax.

P. DeferredCompensation

The City, through the New York State Deferred Compensation Board, offers its employees a Deferred
Compensation Plan (the "Plan") created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, which is
available to all eligible participants, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary (up to the IRS limits) until
future years. Amounts defened under the Plan are not available to the employee until termination, retirement, death
or unforeseeable emergency. The City does not contribute to this plan.

Q. Risk Retention

The City assumes the liability for most risk including, but not limited to, property damage and personal injury
liability. The City purchases commercial insurance to mitigate these risks, subject to certain deductibles. Judgments
and claims are recorded when it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred and the
amount of loss can be reasonably estimated.

R. EquityClassification

l. Govemment-wideStatements

Equity is defined as net position and displayed in three components:

Net Investment in Capital Assets:
Consists ofcapital assets, including restricted capital assets, net ofaccumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are athibutable to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets.
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I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

R. Equity Classification - Continued

Restricted Net Position:
Consists ofnet assets with constraints placed on the use either by: l) external groups such as creditors, grantors,

contributors or laws or regulations of other governments; or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling

legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position:
The remaining portion of net position that does not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net investment in

capital assets".

2. Fund Financial Statements

Equity is defined as fund balance and displayed in five fund balance classifications, which are based primarily

on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of resources

reported in the governmental funds:

Nonspendable:
Amounts that cannot be spent in the current period either because of their form or because they must be

maintained intact. Prepaid expenses are nonspendable assets because, by definition, the money has already been

spent.

Restricted:
Amounts that are subject to externally enforceable legal purpose restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors,

contributors or laws and regulations of other governments or through constitutional provisions or enabling

legislation.

Committed:
Amounts that are subject to a purpose constraint imposed by a formal action of the government's highest level

of decision-making authority (the Common Council) before the end of the year. The same level of formal

action is required to remove the constraint.

Assigned:
Amounts that are subject to a purpose constraint that represents an intended use established by the

government's highest level of decision-making authority or by its designated body or official. The purpose of
the assignment must be narrower than the purpose of the General Fund. In funds other than the General Fund,

assigned fund balance represents the residual amount offund balance.

Unassigned:
Represents the residual amount of fund balance in the General Fund. In funds other than the General Fund, this

classification should only be used to report a deficit balance.

3. RestrictedResources
When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, it
is the City's policy to apply restricted funds before unrestricted funds, unless otherwise prohibited by legal

requirements. Similarly, when an expenditure is incurred forwhich multiple classifications of fund balance are

available, the City's policy is to apply fund balance in the following order: restricted, committed, assigned,

unassigned.
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I. SUMMARY OF'SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

S. Interfund Transfers

The operations of the City give rise to certain transactions between funds, including transfers to provide services
and construct assets. Interfund transfers within fund categories are eliminated for the Statement of Activities. A
detailed description of the interfund transfers that occurred during the year is provided in Note IV.

T. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events from December 31,2020, through September 29,2021, the date on
which the financial statements were available to be issued.

II. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFF'ERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENTS
AND GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS

A.

Due to the differences in the measurement focus and basis of accounting used in the governmental fund statements
and the government-wide statements, certain financial transactions are treated differently. The differences result
primarily from the economic focus of the govemment-wide statements, compared with the current financial
resources focus of the govemmental funds.

Total Fund Balances of Governmental Funds vs. Net Position of Governmental Activities

Total fund balances of the City's govemmental funds differ from o'net position" of govemmental activities
reported in the Statement of Net Position. This difference primarily results from the additional long-term
economic focus of the Statement of Net Position versus the solely current financial resources focus of the
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

The basic financial statements contain a detailed reconciliation of the items creating the differences between
fund balance reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and Net Position reported on the Statement of
Net Position. In the description below, positive numbers represent increases to the Balance Sheet line items and
negative numbers represent decreases.

(1) The costs of building and acquiring capital assets (land, infrastructure, buildings and equipment) financed
from the govemmental funds are reported as expenditures in the year they are incurred and the assets do not
appear on the Balance Sheet. However, the Statement of Net Position includes those capital assets among
the assets of the City as a whole, with their original costs capitalized and depreciation expensed annually
over their useful lives.

Original Cost of Capital Assets
Accumulated Depreciation

Capital Assets, Net

$ 89,519,212
(33.s46,51l)

$ 701

(2) Workers compensation costs are reported as expenditures in the year they are incurred and the assets do not
appear on the Balance Sheet. However, the Statement of Net Position includes additional prepaid amounts
in the assets of the City as a whole.

Prepaid Expenses $ 1.036,743

(3) Interest payable and other long-term liabilities are recognized in the govemment-wide statements under full
accrual accounting. No accrual is recognized in the govemmental fund statements for interest or other
liabilities that were not paid from current financial resources.

Interest Payable at December 31,2020
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II. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENTS
AND GOVERNMENT.WIDE STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

(4) The governmental funds do not include long-term liabilities because they are not due and payable in the

current period. However, these liabilities are reported in the Statement of Net Position because they

represent economic liabilities. Balances at year end were:

Bonds and Installment Obligations Payable

Compensated Absences Payable

ERS and PFRS Pension Liability-Proportionate Share

Landfi ll Remediation Liability
Other Postemployment Benefi ts

$ 10,439,715

3,034,311
20,030,434

413,018
143,314,583

$ 177

(5) Defened outflows and inflows related to the Other Postemployment Benefits are reported in the Statement

of Net Position, but not in the govemmental funds, because they are not due and payable in the current

period. Balances at year end were:

Deferred Outflows of Resources - OPEB S 26,903,587

Deferred Inflows of Resources - OPEB J:1,r73,1s7

(6) In the govemmental funds, amounts due to the New York State Retirement System include costs incurred

through year end that are expected to be liquidated with expendable available resources. In the Statement of
Net Position, these amounts are recorded as of the retirement plan measurement date. This is the amount by

which the fund liability is adjusted for the timing difference.

Due to Other Governments $ (1,824,6+?)

(7) Deferred inflows related to grants, taxes and other receivables are reported on the accrual basis in the

Statement of Net Position, but on the modified accrual basis in the governmental funds. The adjustments

between the two bases at year end were:

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Other $ (6,431,082)

(8) Deferred outflows and inflows related to pensions are reported in the Statement of Net Position, but not in

the governmental funds, because they are not due and payable in the cunent period. Balances at year end

were:

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension

$ 13,358,205

$ 445,722
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II. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENTS
AND GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

B. Explanation of Differences between Govemmental Funds Operating Statement and the Statement of Activities

Differences between the Govemmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance and the Statement of Activities fall into one of three broad categories:

Long-term revenue differences arise because governmental funds report revenues only when they are
considered "available," whereas the Statement of Activities reports revenues when earned. Differences in
long-term expenses arise because governmental funds use a current financial resource measurement focus,
whereas the Statement of Activities uses an economic resource measurement focus.

Capital asset transaction differences include the difference between recording an expenditure for the
purchase of capital assets in the governmental fund statements and depreciation expense on those items as
recorded in the Statement of Activities.

Long-term debt transaction differences occur because both interest and principal payments are recorded as
expenditures in the governmental fund statements when paid, whereas interest payments are recorded in the
Statement of Activities as incurred and principal payments are recorded as a reduction of liabilities in the
Statement of Net Position.

The basic financial statements contain a detailed reconciliation of the items creating the differences between the
change in fund balance reported in the govemmental fund statements and the change in net position reported in
the Statement of Activities.

Total Revenues and Other Fundins Sources

a

a

Total revenues reported in governmental funds
Recognition of deferred property taxes
Recognition of deferred state and federal grant revenue
Recognition of deferred bond premiums
Recognition ofdeferred insurance proceeds and fees
Total revenues reported in the Statement of Activities

Total ExpenditureslExpenses

Total expenditures reported in governmental funds

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses (compensated
absences) are measured by the amounts eamed during the year. In the
governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are measured
by the amount of financial resources used (essentially, the amounts
actually paid). This is the amount by which the liability for compensated
absences increased during the year.

In the Statement of Activities, the expenses for other postemployment
benefits are measured based on the actuarially determined OPEB Liability
of the City. In the governmental funds, however, these expenditures are
measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially the
amounts paid). This is the amount by which the OPEB expense exceeded
the amount offinancial resources used during the year.

$ 49,026,980
137,602
(27,360)
(1,770)
71,000

_$4e2o6An

$ 50,498,143

308,455
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II. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENTS
AND GOVERNMENT.WIDE STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

B. Explanation of Differences between Govemmental Funds Operating Statement and the Statement of Activities -
Continued

In the Statement of Activities, pension expense related to ERS and PFRS

defined benefit plans is measured as the change in the City's proportionate

shares of the net pension assets and liabilities as of the measurement dates

for each plan. In the governmental funds, however, these expenditures are

recognized as the sum of (l) amounts paid by the employer to the pension

plan, and (2) the change between beginning and ending balances of
amounts normally expected to be liquidated with expendable available

financial resources. This is the amount by which pension expense

exceeded the amount offinancial resources expended during the year. 3,784,170

Interest payable is recognized in the government-wide statements under

full accrual accounting, whereas it is recognized when paid in the

governmental fund statements. This is the amount by which interest

payable for the current year was less than the interest payable for the prior
year. (7,1 1 l)

When the purchase or construction of capital assets is financed through

governmental funds, the resources expended for those assets are reported

as expenditures in the year they are incurred. However, in the Statement

of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by

which capital asset additions of $9,011,702 exceeded depreciation

expense of 54,250,790 in the current year. (4,760,912)

Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the govemmental funds but

reduces the long-term liability in the Statement of Net Position and does

not affect the Statement of Activities. (1,811,340)

The cost of prepaid workers compensation assets are generally reported as

expenditures in the year they are incurred and the assets do not appear on

the balance sheet, but the Statement of Net Position includes all prepaid

assets of the City as a whole.

Total expenses reported in the Statement of Activities

(259,466)

$51 59

III. CASH

At December 31,2020,the carrying amount of the City's deposits (cash, certificates of deposit and interest-bearing

savings accounts) was $18,963,900 and the bank balance was $19,375,173. The City's deposits at December 31,

2020, and during the year then ended, were entirely covered by FDIC Insurance or by pledged collateral held by the

City's agent bank in the City's name. Petty Cash is included in Cash and Cash Equivalents and totaled $1,250 at

year end.
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Contractually
Plan Year Ended Reouired Contribution Emolover Contribution

Contribution
deficiencv (excess)

Actual

Employees' Retirement System

3/3t/2021
3/3t/2020
3/31/2019
3/31/2018
3l3t/2017
3/31/2016
3/31/2015

$

$

$
$

$

$
$

1,373,718 $
1,338,743 $
1,272,396 $
1,357 ,915 $
1,323,022 $
1,511,551 $
1,631,252 $

1,373,7t8 $
1,338,743 $
1,272,396 $
1,357,915 $
1,323,022 $
1,376,sst $
1,221,646 $

135,000
409,606

Covered
Pavroll

Covered

8,899,782
9,564,299
9,575,008
8,490,239
8,625,019
9,085,750
8,805,830

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

Required Contributions
as a Percentage of its

Covered Pavroll

15.44Yo

14.00Yo
13.29Yo
15.99yo
15.34Yo

15.t50
13-87Y"

Required Contributions
as a Percentage ofitsContracfually Actual Contribution

Plan Year Ended
and Fire Retirement System

Contribution

2,432,8s6 $
2,425,319 $
2,305,012 $
2,438,708 $

2,288,926 $
2,208,039 $

2,440,7rt $

Contribution

2,432,856 $
2,42s,319 $
2,305,012 S

2,438,708 $
2,288,926 $
2,208,039 $
2,305,723 $

Covered

3/3v202t
3/31/2020
3/31/2019
3/31/2018
3/31t2017
3/31/2016
313112015

$

$
$
$

$

$

$ 134,988

11,234,584
10,124,452
10,566,486
10,007,857
tl,289,209
10,826,434
t0,492,852

21.66%0

23.96%;0

2l.81Yo
24.37Yo

20.28Yo
2039%
21.97%;o

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

GASB 68 requires that the past l0 years of information be presented. Due to the fact that GASB 68 was recently implemented, prior year information is not fully
available for 10 years. The data will be accumulated over time and presented according to GASB 68.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDI'T'URI,S COMTARUT''TO BUDGET _ GENERAL FUND

F'ORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2O2O

GENERAL FUND

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

VARIANCE
WITH FINAL

BUDGET

REVENUES
Real Property Taxes
Other Property Tax ltems
Non Property Tax ltems
Departmental Income
Intergovernmental Charges
Use of Money and ProPertY

Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Sale of Property and Compensation for Loss

Miscellaneous Local Sources

State Aid

$ 17,545,839
885,000

1 5,136,000
2,140,975

693,50s
180,300
802,569
144,000
50,500

4,464,211
610,199
206.677

$ 17,545,839
885,000

15,136,000
2,637,t75

693,505
180,300
802,569
144,000
50,500

4,464,211
953,13 1

206-677

$ 17,545,839
994,722

15,380,227
t,541,474

386,1 16

39,162
989,176

63,149
106,7s3

4,566,670
1,136,978

163.406

109,722
244,227

(l,09s,701)
(307,389)
(141,138)
186,607
(80,85 l )
56,253

102,459
183,847
(43.271\

$

Federal Aid
42.8s9.775 43 .907 42-913-6728 (785.235\

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES

General Government SuPPort
Public Safety
Health
Transportation
Economic Assistance and Opportunity
Culture and Recreation
Home and Community Service

Employee Benefits
Capital Outlay
Debt Service

6,344,974
13,367,866

115,718
I,791,830

587,545
1,898,003
2,694,744

15,037,744
543,550
624.566

5,533,989
14,334,717

114,499
1,582,102

813,137
2,173,388
2,941,346

15,475,068
1,216,716

4,055,884
14,016,093

98,203
1,366,721

561,393
1,462,181
2,s40,890

14,248,t52
919,737
599.988

1,478,105
318,624

16,296
215,381
251,744
711,207
400,456

1,226,916
296,979

1.r73601 -161
43.006.540 44.786 123 39.869.242 4-916-881Total

Excess of Revenues Over/(Under)
146.765\ 0.087.216) 3.044-430 4 l3 1-646Expenditures

Other Financing Sources/(Uses):
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out 1.457.793\ (1 72.779\ (1,43r.793) ( 1.259.014)

Total Other tr'inancins Sources (1-457 -793\ 72.779\ (1.431.793) (1.259.014\

Net Change in Fund Balance (r,604,5ss) (r,2s9,ges) 1,612,637 2,872,632

A
Total

Fund IJnass 58 99s
$ 7
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IV. INTERFUND ACTIVITY

Interfund receivables and payables at December 31,2020 were as follows:

FUND RECEIVABLE PAYABLE
Governmental Funds:

General
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Subtotal Govemmental Funds

Proprietary Funds:
Water
Sewer
Subtotal Proprietary Funds
TOTALS

$

5.613.921

639,49s

4,648,107
676,s44
289,270

(r,077,901)
(4,s98,s32)

t7

$

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2020 were as follows:

TRANSFERSTN TRANSFERSOUT

(2,407)
(357,344')

639,495 (359,7s1\

_$ 62s3Ar6 _$ @lll!)

$ $ (1,431,793)
1,437,793
1,43r,793 (1,431,793)

$ r.431.793 $ (1,431,793)

Interfund transfers were made for the following purposes:

. Repayment of the City's debt is done through the debt service fund

General
Debt Service

Subtotal Governmental Funds
TOTALS
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V. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset balances and activity for the year ended December 31, 2020 were as follows
Beginning
Balance
1/1l2O2O Additions DisPosals Reclassifications

Ending Balance
r2t3u2020

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets, not being depreciated

Capital Assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and Equipment

Total Capital Assets being depreciated
Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings
Improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated, net

Govemmental Activities Capital Assets, net

Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets, not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets, not being depreciated

Capital Assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and Equipment

Total Capital Assets being depreciated

Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated, net

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, net

General Government
Public Safety
Transportation
Culture and Recreation
Home and Community Services

Total governmental activities depreciation

2,864,439 5,t59,137

s s $ $647,753
2,216,686 5,159,137

(43s,83 l )

$ 647,753
7,375,823
8,023,s76

r1,078,261
19,33s,640
38,660,678
12,421,O57

11,514,092
17 ,891,701
37,700,84s
12,041,796

t,443,939
1,364,98s (405,1 52)

(664,380)

79,t48,434 3,852,565 (1,505,363) 81,495,636

(s,24r,0s4)
(7,889,716)

(14,078,230)
(6,337,s 1 I )

(33,s46,5 I I )

(s,399,e28)
(6,914,418)

(12,498,386)
(5,988,352)

(30,801,084)

(276,e57)
(97s,298)

(1,665,288)
(r,333,247\

435,83 I

405,t52
664,380

1,505,363

(3 1e,708)
319,708

(4,250,790)

48,347,350 (3e 8.225) 47 125

s 51,211,789 $ 4,760,912 $

$ $363,659
t0,451,675 2,020,334

s

$
(961,99t)
(96r,991)

_gJ:.2l2Ju

s 363,6s9
11,510,018
rl,873,677

$

10,815,334 2,020,334

21,277,460
32,565,997
4,14t,369

(6,772)

(268,174)
(274,946)

5,674

2s6.482

961,99r
961 991

21,291,358
32,575,807

5,078, I 56
58,945,321

(12,688,295)
(11,431,405)

(2,2es,649)
(26,4rs,349)

32,529,972

s 44,403,649

20,670
9,810

242,970
57,984,826 273,450

(24,8r 1,390)

33,173,436 (t2,790)

s ( 12,790) s

Depreciation expense for business-typel activities was all charged to Home and Community services.

Depreciation expense for governmental activities was charged to functions as follows:

(rr,882,973)
( 10,668,010)
(2,260,407)

(8 10,996)
(763,39s)
(29t,724)

(1,866,115)

(r,592,665)

$ 427.669

262,156

961.991

s 43,988,770

$ 640,8s1
623,425

1,271,869
s21,228

1,193,416

_$ 42s0389_
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VI. PENSION PLANS

Plan Descriotion

The City participates in the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System ("ERS') and the New
York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System ("PFRS"). These are cost-sharing multiple-employer
retirement systems. The Systems provide retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits.
Obligations of employers and employees to contribute and benefits to employees are governed by the New york
State Retirement and Social Security Law ("NYSRSSL"). As set forth in the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller of the
State of New York ("Comptroller") serves as sole trustee and administrative head of the Systems. The
Comptroller shall adopt and may amend rules and regulations for the administration and transaction of the
business of the Systems and for the custody and control of their funds. The Systems issue a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be
obtained by writing to the New York State and Local Retirement Systems, Gov. Alfred E. Smith State Office
Building, Albany, New York 12244.

Funding Policy

The Systems are noncontributory except for Tier 3,4,5 and 6 employees who joined the New York State and
Local Employees' Retirement System after July 27,7976, who contribute 3%o to 6% of their salary. Under the
authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller shall certify annually the rates, expressed as proportions of member
payroll and employer contributions, used in computing the contributions required to be made by employers to
the pension accumulation fund. An Eligible Tier 3 or 4 member with ten or more years of membership, or ten
years credited service, will not be required to contribute to the Retirement System. Tier 5 and 6 members must
continue to contribute throughout their employment.

The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The required contributions for the current
year and two preceding years were:

Plan Year Ended March 31 ERS pFRS
2021 $ 1,373,718 52,432,856
2020 $ 1,338,743 $2,425.319
2019 $1,272,396 $2,305,012

Pension Liabilities" Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

At December 31,2020, the City reported liabilities of $8,878,900 and $13,556,133 for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability for each of the Systems. The net pension liability was measured as of March 31,2020
for ERS and PFRS. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation. The Cify's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's
long-term share of contributions to the Systems relative to the projected contributions of all participating
members, as actuarially determined. This information was provided to the City by the ERS and PFRS Systems.

At March 31,2020, the City's proportion of the ERS net pension liability was 0.0335299o/o. AtMarch 31, 2019,
the City's proportion of the ERS net pension liability was 0.0310817%.

At March 31,2020, the City's proportion of the PFRS net pension liability was0.2536257yo. At March 31,
2019, the City's proportion of the PFRS net pension liability was0.2525173vo.
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VI. PENSION PLANS_CONTINUED

For the year ended December 31,2020 the City recognized pension expense of $3,139,874 for ERS and

$4,914,376 for PFRS. At December 31,2020, the City reported defened outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources related to pensions for the following sources:
Deferred Outflows

of Resources
ERS

$ 522,559 $

PFRS
902,696 $

Total
1,425,25sDifferences between expected and actual experience

Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments

Changes in proportion and difference between

the City's contributions and proportionate share

of contributions

City's contributions subsequent to the

measurement date

Total

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes of assumptions

Changes in proportion and difference between

the City's contributions and proportionate share

of contributions

Total

178,779 1,158,721 1,337,500

4,551,7s6 6,104,753 10,656,509

259,125 427,533 686,6s8

1.021.852 1-O2t-852

s 6,534,071 $ 8,593,703 ,$ ls,127,774

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

$

ERS

154,373

PFRS
227,064

Total
$ 227,064

1s4,373

110,380

$

15,831 94.s49

$ 170.204 $ 321.613 $ 491.817

City contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension

liability in the year ended December 31, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and

defened inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

ERS PFRS

$ 947,939 $ 1,791,s50
1,349,966 1,946,118
1,685,029 2,401,011
1,359,081 1,996,9s6

- 136,455

$ s342,015 $ 82?2,090
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VI. PENSION PLANS-CONTINUED

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability as of the measurement date was determined by using an actuarial valuation as noted
in the table below, with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to the measurement
date.

Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuations were as follows:

Measurement Date

Investment Rate of Retum

Projected Salary Increases

Decrement Tables

Inflation Rate

Mortality Improvement

Asset Class:
Domestic Equity
International Equity
Private Equity
Real Estate
Absolute Return Strategies
Opportunistic Portfolio
Real Assets
Bonds and Mortgages
Cash
Inflation-indexed bonds

ERS

@

36Yo

14Yo

lUYo

l0%;o

2Yo

3Yo

3Yo

lTYo
loh
4Yo

April 1, 2010 -
March 31, 2015

System's Experience

2-5lo/o

Society of Actuaries
Scale MP - 2018

Allocation Rate of Retum

April l,2010 -
March 31,2015

System's Experience

2.50Yo

Society of Actuaries
Scale MP - 2018

PFRS
March3l,2020

6.80Yo 6.8oyo
compounded annually compounded annually

net ofinvestment expense net ofinvestment expense

4.20Yo 5 -00o/o

The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best estimate r€mges of expected future real rates of retum (expected returni net of investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by each of the target asset
allocation percentages and by adding expected inflation.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of retum for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation
for both retirement systems are summarized below:

ERS and PFRS
Measurement Date March 31,2020

Long-term
Target Expected Real

4.050h
6.15o/o

6.75o/o

4.95Yo

3.25Yo

4.65010

5.95o/"

0.7s%o

0.00o/o

0.50o/o

lO0o/"Total

40



CITY OF'KINGSTON, NEW YORK
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Discount Rate

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 6.8%o for ERS and 6.8Yo for PFRS. The

projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will
Le made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily

required rates, actuarially. Based upon the assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be

uuuilubl" to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term

expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to

determine the total pension liability.

Sensitiviw of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate Assumption

The following presents the City's proportionate share of the ERS and PFRS net pension liabilities calculated

using the disiount rates referred to above, as well as what the City's proportionate share of each net pension

u5.t/lliubility) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or I
percentage point higher than the current rate refened to above:

ERS

lyo
Decrease

5.\Yo

Current
Assumption

6.8Vo

loh
lncrease

7.\Yo

Employer's Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension AsseV(Liability) $ (16,2es,2S9) $ (8,878,900) $ (2,048,37s)

PFRS

lo/o

Decrease
Current

Assumption
6.\Vo

l%o

Increase
7.8Yo5 \Vo

Employer's Proporlionate Share
of the Net Pension Asset/(Liability) $ (24,235,642) S (13,5s6,133) $ (3,989,704)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

The components of the current-year net pension liability of the employers as of March 31, 2020, were as

follows:
(Dollars in Thousands)
ERS PFRS

Measurement Date

Employers' total pension liability
Plan net position
Employers' net pension asset/(liability)

Ratio of plan net position to the

employers' total pension asseV(liabi lity)

March 31,2020 March 31,2020

$ (194,5e6,261) $ (35,309,017)
ll5 80

86.39Yo 84.86yo

Pavables to the Pension Plan

For ERS, employer contributions for the plan year ended March 3 I , 2027 were paid to the System in December

2020. Prepaid retirement contributions as of December 31,2020 amounted to $340,764.

For PFRS, employer contributions for the plan year ended March 3 l, 2021 were paid to the System in February

2021. Accrued retirement contributions as of Decembet3l,2020 amounted to$1,824,642.
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VII. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEF'ITS

Plan Description
The City provides postemployment health insurance coverage to retired employees through a self-administered
single employer plan in accordance with the provisions of various employment contracts and human resource
policies. The benefit levels, employee contributions and employer contributions are govemed by the City's
contractual agreements. A trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75 has not been
established.

Benefits Provided
The City's Other Post-Employment Benefits ("OPEB") plan subsidizes the cost of healthcare to eligible retired
employees and their spouses and dependent children. Eligibility is based on the respective rules of the New York
State and Local Employees Retirement System ('ERS) as well as the provisions of the City's agreements with its
employees. The following eligibility rules current apply to the City's employees:

o Public Safety: eligibility for retirement under ERS; 20 years of service
o Staff and water department: eligibility for retirement under ERS; after age 55 with at least l0 years of

service

Medical and prescription drug benefits are offered to retirees on a City-subsidized basis. Upon attaining age 65 or
upon disability retirement, Medicare (Parts A and B) becomes the primary provider for hospital insurance and
supplementary medical insurance, with the City's plan providing an additional layer of coverage. The City
reimburses Medicare Part B premiums for retirees and their spouses.

The benefit terms are dependent on which contract covers the employee. Contribution rates for new retirees are as
follows:

CiW Contributions (Fixed) Reimburse Part B Premium

Group
Provider
Ootions

Minimum
Years of
Service Individual Familv

Surviving
Individual Soouse Soouse

Staff NYSHIT l0
10

Under 65

Over 65
s 1,031.82 $

388.60
1,193.79

N/A
Y Y Y

Public Safety N Y SHIP 20
20

Under 65
Over 65

1 ,03 1 .82
388.60

1,193.79
N/A

Y Y Y

Water Dept l\ Y slltr l0
l0
30
30

lJnder 65

Over 65
Under 65

Over 65

928.64
349.74

I,03 I .82
388.60

835.65
N/A

835.65
N/A

Y Y Y

The City's contribution is equivalentto the portion of health insurance premiums paid that are allocated to retirees,
estimated to be $3,825,260 during the year ended December 31,2020.

Emplo)rees Covered by Benefit Terms

At December 31,2020, the following employees were covered by benefit terms

Active employees
Retired
Total employees covered by benefit terms 571

Total OPEB Liabilitv

The City obtained an actuarial valuation report as of December 31,2020. The liability for other postemployment
benefits was measured as of Decemb er 31 , 2020 and totaled $162,171 ,271 .

265
306
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VII. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - CONTINUED

Actuarial Assumotions and Other Inputs

The total OPEB liability in the December 3 l, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial

assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation Rate

Projected Salary lncreases, Including Wage

Inflation

Discount Rate

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

3.00Yo

3.000h

7.93o/o

Pre-65 : 8.0%o for pharmacy, medical,
dental and vision for 2020, reduced

incrementally to an ultimate rate of
5.0%o after 7 years

Post-65: Same

Current Retiree's Share of Benefit Related Costs Retirees pay based on specific cost
sharing agreement

Future Retiree's Share of Benefit Related Costs Retirees pay based on specific cost
sharing agreement

The discount rate was based on a review of the yield derived from the S&P Municipal Bond 20 Year High
Grade Rate Index per Fidelity Investments.

Mortality Rates were based the RP-2006 mortality table with \IP-2020 projection.

Chanees in the Total OPEB Liability during the year ended 12l31/20:

Balance - Beginning

Changes for the Year:
Service Cost
lnterest
Changes in Assumptions
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience
Benefit Payments

Net Changes

Balance - Ending

$ r 71,1 80,003

5,009,410
5,518,1 l6

28,559,165
(44,270,163)
(3,82s,260)
(9,008,732)

$ 162.171.271
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Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following table presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I percentage point lower or higher than the current
discount rate.

l%o Decrease Discount Rate l%o Increase
0.93Yo 1.93Yo 2.93/0

Total oPEB Liability $ r83,647,684 $ 162,171,271 $ 140,694,856

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liabilify to Changgs in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following table presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is I percentage point lower or higher than the
healthcare cost trend rate.

l%o Decrease Healthcare Cost 1olo Increase
7.0%o decreasing Trend Rate 8.0olo 9.0olo decreasing

Io 4.0Vo Decreasing to 5.0Yo to 6.0yo
Total OPEB Liability $ 133,019,211 $ 162,171,2t1 S 197,317,704

OPEB Exnense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended December 31,2020, the City recognized OPEB expense of $8,204,910. At December 37,2020,
the City reported the following deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB.

Deferred
Outflows of Deferred Inflows
Resources ofResources

Differences between expected and acfual experience $ 773,824 S 40,791,790

Changes of Assumptions or other inputs
Total

2021
2022
2023
2024

29,521,004

_q__10,2e4,82!_ $ 40.79r.790

City contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in the
year ended December 31, 2021. Other amounts recognized in the defened inflows of resources related to OPEB will
be recognized in the OPEB expense as follows:

$ (2,322,616)
(2,322,6r6)
(2,709,s29)
(3.142.20r)

3 (r0,4e6962L
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VIII. SHORT-TERM DEBT

Liabilities for bond anticipation notes (BANs) are generally accounted for in the capital projects and enterprise

funds. Principal payments must be made annually. State law requires that BANs issued for capital purposes be

converted to long-term obligations within five years after the original issue date.

The following is a summary of the City's outstanding bond anticipation notes as of December 31,2020:

Balance New
12/31/2019 Issues Payments

Balance
12/3U2020

Bond Anticipation Notes:
Govemmental Activities:
Equipment/Improvement

Total Govemmental Activities:
Business-type Activities:
Sewer Improvements
Water Improvements

Total Business-type Activities

s 5,804,776 $ 3,051,745 $ (400,000)
5,804,776 3,051.745 (400,000)

$ 8,456,521
8,456,521

Governmental activities
Interest Paid

Less: Interest accrued - prior year

Plus: Interest accrued - current year

Business-type Activities
Interest Paid
Less: Interest accrued - prior year

Plus: Interest accrued - current year

4,396,366 148,255 (78,000) 4,466,62r

$116,096
(40,3 l l )
44,749

$ 120,s34

$143,779
(76,456)

83,696

$ 1s I .019

4,140,137 5,456,020 (2,408,657) 7,187,500
8,536,503 5,604,275 (2,486,6s7) 11,6s4,121

Total Bond Anticipation Notes $14,341,279 $8,656,020 $ (2,886,657) $ 20,110,642
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IX. LONG-TERM DEBT

The City borrows money for various purposes, including acquiring land and equipment or constructing buildings
and improvements. This borrowing enables the cost of these capital assets to be borne by the present and future
taxpayers who benefit from the capital assets. The debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the City.

At December 31,2020, the total long-term principal indebtedness outstanding for serial bonds and installment
obligations ofthe City, was $27,875,854. See Schedule oflndebtedness.

Governmental activities
Interest Paid - Bonds and Installment obligations
Less: Interest accrued - prior year net

Plus: Interest accrued - current year
Plus: Library Interest accrued - current year
Interest Expense
Less: Library portion ofinterest paid and accrued
Total Governmental Activities Interest

s 341,722
(113,822)
100,497

3,546
331,943
(21.564\

$ 310,379

s 416,474
(127,829)
139,786

s 428.371

Long-term liability balances and activity for the year are summarized below:

Business-type Activities
Interest Paid
Less: Interest accrued - prior year net
Plus: Interest accrued - current year
lnterest Expense

Govemmental Activities:
Bonds payable
Compensated absences
Landfi l1 remediation liability
Installment obligations
Share of net pension liabilify
OPEB liabilify

Total governmental
Business-wpe Activities:

Bonds payable
Bond anticipation note payable
Compensated absences
Installment obligations
Share of net pension liability
OPEB liability

Total business-type
Total Long Term Debt

Beginning
Balance

$ 1r,426,9s8
2,725,856

498,702
338,413

5,822,800
150,407,681
t7t

Additions Reductions
Ending
Balance

Due in One
Year

$
308,45s

14,207,635

$ (r,185,143) $

(85,684)
(140,5 l3)

1 0,241 ,8 1 5

3,034,3rr
4 r 3,018
197,900

20,030,435
143-3t4.584

$ 1 , 133,494

34,303
97,289

(7,0e3,0e7)
l0 14,516,090 (8,504,437') 177,232,063 1,265 ,086

15,886,745
8,536,503

485,839
807,578
614,306

20,772,327

2,328,607
5,604,275

t,790,293

(1,296,857)
(2,486,657)

(4s,973)
(289,e34)

( l,915.639)

16,918,495
1r,654,121

439,866
517,644

2,404,599
18,856,688

1,368,735
9,832,442

254,480

47,103,298
$ 218,323,708

9,723,175 (6,035,060)

_$ u239,26s__$ (r4,53e,4e?)
50,791,413 tt,455,657

s 228.023.476 $ 12,720,743

Activity for compensated absences is shown at net due to the impracticality of determining these amounts separately.

Payments of compensated absences are dependent upon future factors and, therefore, the timing of such payments cannot

be determined. Compensated absences are reflected as a long-term liability in the Statement of Net Position.
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IX. LONG.TERM DEBT_CONTINUED

The following is a summary of the maturity of long-term indebtedness for serial bonds and installment obligations
Govemmental Activities Business-t1zpe Activitios

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2040
2041-2045
2046-2050

$

Principal
1,230,783 $

1,153,293
845,876
798,218
802,01 1

2,922,508
2,008,235

678,791

Interest
332,703 $
367,027
330,534
295,854
288,458
625,021
271,765

28,61 8

Sewer Fund
Principal Interest

I,055,280 $ 325,658
1,071,637 29r,748
814,771 256,923
809,429 229,601
712,636 201,431

3,131,728 643,239
1,657,000 202,s74
550,000 27,097

Water Fund
Principal Interest

s67,93s $ 142,713
576,619 130,293
556,587 117,679
565,441 109,s79
579,280 76,875

2,038,282 348,083
1,378,630 114,357
665,266 20,140
341,560

$

0

Constitutional Debt Limit- As of the December 31,2020 calculation, the projected net indebtedness of the City of
Kingston aggregated $47,979,791. Of this amount, $29,765,336 was subject to the constitutional debt limit and
represented approximately 27% of its limit.

Sources of Repayment - Govemmental activities debt will be repaid from the General Fund and business-type debt
will be repaid from the applicable enterprise fund. Compensated absences, retirement and OPEB liabilities are paid
from the fund responsible for the employee's compensation. Generally all other liabilities are paid from the General
Fund.

Landfill Costs:

State and federal laws and regulations required the City to place a final cover on its landfill site and to perform
certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. The final closure of the
landfill took place in 1998. The current estimated remaining liability is $413,018 and is reported with other long-
term liabilities in the government-wide statement of net assets. Actual costs may vary due to inflation, changes in
technology, or changes in regulations.

X. DEFICT FUND BALANCES

The Capital Projects Fund had a deficit fund balance at December 31,2020. The deficit will be eliminated as short-
term debt is converted to permanent financing.

t7 $7
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XI. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Fundins

The City participates in a number of grant programs. These programs are subject to financial and compliance audits
by the grantors or their representatives. The audits of these programs may be conducted, in accordance with grantor
requirements, on a periodic basis. Accordingly, the City's compliance with applicable grant requirements will be
established at some future date. The amounts, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting
agencies cannot be determined at this time. The City believes, based upon its review of current activity and prior
experience, the amount of such disallowances , if any, will be minimal.

Judgments and Claims

There are several pending and,/or threatened claims against the City for personal injury and/or properly damages. In
the opinion of counsel, most of these claims are either fully insured or their settlement will not have a material effect
on the financial statements. Judgments and claims are recorded when it is probable that an asset has been impaired
or a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. However, the City has adopted
an insurance program which includes a self-insurance portion. The City has reserved $195,804 for claims in addition
to amounts included in the annual budget.

Also, several properry owners within the City have filed certiorari claims for reductions in assessed valuations. In
the opinion of counsel, the results of these proceedings cannot be determined at this time.

Authorized Debt

In addition to the debt described in Notes VIII and IX, $49,770,044 has been authorized but was unissued at
December 31,2020.

Transit

The City dissolved its transit service on July 1,2019 due to declining Citibus ridership and entered into an
agreement with Ulster County for usage of the Area Transit services. The City has committed to pay $225,000
annually for five years from 2020 -2024.

Capital Proiects

The City of Kingston, other than the Water Department has prepared a capital plan covering nineteen capital
projects. The current estimated total cost of these projects amounts to $45,336,730 of which 49o/ois expected to be
covered by grants and 5lo/o by local funding. These projects are prioritized based on criteria, the highest ofwhich is
legal mandates. Estimated completion timetables run through August 2025.

XII. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The City of Kingston and Kingston City School District had undertaken the joint operation and maintenance of
Dietz Stadium, a recreational facility, through the Dietz Stadium Commission. As of September 19, 2019, the City
and School District signed an inter-municipal agreement, wherein the School District conveyed its share of
management and capital control to the City for a period of 5 years with an automatic renewal for an additional five
years. The School District will pay the City $95,000 per year, plus scheduled increases, and share in capital costs.
The City received the first payment of $95,000 in2019 and $96,900 in2020. This revenue and the related operating
and maintenance expenditures are recorded in the General Fund.

Beginning in 2019, the City developed payroll/benefit reimbursement agreements with the KLDC for personnel
services provided by the City. The reimbursements are now based upon the amounts established in those
agreements. The City received $40,909 under those agreements for the year ended December 31, 2020. The City
also received $227,793 from the Community Foundations of the Hudson Valley in the form of a grant for the benefit
ofthe Land Bank for staffing expenses.
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XIII. LEASE AGREEMENTS

In August 2005, the City entered into an agreement with Aslan Environmental Services (o'Aslan") to implement and

manage a process for converting sludge into bio-solid pellets with equipment provided by Aslan. The term of the

agreement was for l0 years. $-0- was paid in 2020,as the City is currently in litigation with Aslan. The total

financial impact of any settlement has yet to be determined. The City has been processing their sludge with outside

agencies, primarily Ulster County Resource Recovery Agency ("UCRRA").

XIV. PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENTS

The City is a party to 17 real property tax abatement agreements under Article l8-A of the real property law. These

agreements provide for abatement of real property taxes in exchange for a payment in lieu of taxes ("PILOT") in

compliance with RPTL 412-A, Article V & XI of the Private Housing Finance Law, Title I of Article l8-A of NYS
GML Exemption Policy. In accordance with this policy, the City and the Ulster County IDA grant PILOTs for
various activities, such as new construction, purchasing ofan existing facility, or the improvement or expansion of
an existing facility.

The following provides information related to the PILOT agreements in effect for the year ended December 31,

2020:

Total
Assessed

Value

2020 City
Tax
Rate

City Taxes
Abated For

2020 *

Potentially
Eligible for

RPTL
58la

City PILOT
2020 City Tax and Tax

Value Without Received ForStart
Date 2020

2014
2015
2005
2014
2015
2006
196t
2008
2002
2015
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2020

EA Flathbush, LLC
Golden Flill Acquisition LLC

Benedictine Hospital
JBT Holdings LLC

Lace Mill Limited Partnership
Kingston Property Associates (Springbrook Village)

Rondout Gardens
Anderson Center (Valentine Ct) **

Brigham Senior Housing LP
Birchwood Village LP

Landmark Preservation - Yosman
Landmark Preservation - Gov Clinton

Energy Square Housing Development Fund Co, Inc

Hudson Valley Development LLC
Hudson Valley Development LLC
Hudson Valley Development LLC
Hudson Valley Development LLC

$ 9,930,000 $

$ 2,600,000 s
$ 3,303,000 s
$ 5,341,000 $

s 8,539,000 $
s 7,s76,000 s
$ 400,000 s
$ 1,679,000 $
s 5,2s8,000 $
$ 6,884,000 $

s 3,884,000 $

$ 593,000 $

$ 1,400,000 $
$ 334,000 $

$ 334,000 $

$ 658,000 $

14.29"t658
14.297658
14.297658
14.297658
14.297658
14.29'.1658

14.297658
t4.297658
14.297658
t4.2976s8
14.297658
t4.297658
t4.297658
14.297658
14.297658
14.297658

29,067.t4
t41,97 5.7 4

37 ,1',13.91
47,225.t6
76,363.79

122,087.70
108,3 l 9.06

24,005.7'l
75,177.09
98,425.08
55,532. I 0

8,478.51
20,016.72
4,775.42
4,775.42
9,407.86

$ 19,926.03

s 46,79"t.28

$ 15,222.72

$ 23,s03.26
s 16,260.20
$ 127,324.00

$ 5,921.42
$ 3,019.76
s 32,069.62
$ 11,234.32

$ 53,510.56
$ 55,432.21
$ 7,391.00
$ 7,363.29
s 4,'77s.42

s 4,77s.42
$ 9,407.86

$ 95,178.46
$ 21,951.19
$ 23,12r.90
$ 60,103.59
$ (5,236.30)
$ 102,397.64
$ (3,019.76)
$ (8,063.85)
s 63,942.',77

$ 44,914.52
$ 99.89
s I,087.s 1

$ t2,653.43
s (0.00)

$ (0.00)

$ (0.00)

s
$

$

$
$

$

$

s
$
$
s
$
$
$

$

$
$

No
No
No
No
Yes
Yes
Yes
No
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
No
No
No
No

*The amount listed in the "City Taxes Abated For 2020" column is based upon market value assessments. These

figures would be significantly lower if eligible properties were valued using RPTIL 58 I a valuation methodology.

**Valentine Court property is owned by a Non-Profit entity eligible and receiving full tax exemption under RPTL
420 (wholly exempt).
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XV.UNCERTAINTY

Beginning in March 2020,local, U.S., and world governments encouraged self-isolation to curtail the spread of the
global pandemic, coronavirus disease (COVID-I9), by mandating temporary work stoppage in many sectors and
imposing limitations on travel and size and duration of group meetings. There is unprecedented uncertainty
surrounding the duration of the pandemic and its long-term economic ramifications. Accordingly, while
management cannot quantif, the financial and any other impacts to the City as on September 28, 2021, management
does believe that a material impact on the City's financial position and results of future operation is reasonably
possible.

XVI. CUMULATIVE EFF'ECT AND PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

The City implemented GASB 84, Fiduciary Activities, in 2020. As a result, the Citygecorded a cumulative effect
adjustment, increasing beginning fund balance and beginning net position by $170,604. Additionalty, for the year
ended December 31, there was a correction for OPEB allocation between the sewer fund and the govemmental
activities of $1,992,271. The City's net position has been restated as follows:

Primary Government

Net Position Beginning of Year

Prior Period Adjustment:

OPEB allocation:

Sewer Fund

Govemmental Activities

$ (95,611,937)

l,gg2,27l

(1,992,271)

GASB 84 Implementation (cumulative effect adjustment):

Change to General Fund

Net Change in Net Position

r70,604

170,604

Net Position Beginning of year, as restated $ (9s,441,333)

XVII. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The City has issued two Bond Anticipation Notes ("BAN") in 2021. In March 2021 a BAN in the amount of
$12,773,00 was issued, including $7,300,000 in new funding for Water Fund projects, due March 2022 at an interest
rate of 1.50%. In August 202,the City issued a BAN in the amountof $15,977,507 including $6,064,507 in new
funding for various capital projects, due August2022 at an interest rate of 1.25%.

In April 202l,the Common Council committed to using $499,394 of fund balance in the General Fund to fund a
comprehensive zoning code revision project. In August 202l,the Common Council committed to using $298,695 of
fund balance in the General Fund for cameras and related equipment for the police department.

In June 2021, in a case involving a sanitary sewage sludge facility, Supreme Court, by decision and order, set
damages as $651,468. Litigation is continuing so that the determination of the funding of any settlement will be
made when the final decision and order is issued.

In July 2021, the City received notification that it would receive $17.3 million in American Rescue Plan Act
funding, of which $8,650,000 has been received in202l. The City has not finalized its plans for the use of these
funds.
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CITY OF',KINGSTON, NEW YORK
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XUII. NEWACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

In January of 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of Statement No. 84 is to
improve guidance regarding the identification offiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes
and how those activities should be reported. Statement No. 84 establishes criteria for identifiing fiduciary activities
of all state and local govemments. The focus of the criteria generally is on: l) whether a government is controlling
the assets of the fiduciary activity, and 2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate
criteria are included to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are
fiduciary activities. The City implemented this standard for the year ended December 31,2020.

In June 2017, GASB issued Statement 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information
needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This
Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease
assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for
lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings ofthe right to use an undirlying asset.
Underthis Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use leaseasset, and
a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the
relevance and consistency of information about govemments' leasing activities. The City is required to implement
this standard for the year ending December 31,2022. The City has not evaluated the effect of GASB 87 on its
financial statements.

In March 2018, GASB issued Statement 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and
Direct Placements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in notes to
government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies
which liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. This Statement requires
that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to financial statements, including unused
lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant
events of default with finance-related consequences, significant termination events with finance-related
consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses. The City implemented this standard for the year ended
December 31,2020 as required. The implementation did not have a significant impact on the City's financial
statements.

GASB has also issued Statements 89 through 94,96 and 97, none of which are expected to have any substantive
effects on the City's net position. GASB 95 extended the implementation dates of several standards. The dates listed
above are reflective ofthose changes.
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE CITY'S TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Total OPEB Liabilitv Dec.31.2020 Dec.3l .2019 Dec.31.2018

Service Cost $

Interest
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience

5,009,410 $

5,519,1 l6
(44,270,163)
28,559,165
(3"82s.260\

4,617,343 $
5,939,214

(8,959,434)
71,122,788

.715.7 54\

4,228,337
5,544,492
1,934,543

(3.s05.480)
Changes in Assumptions
Benefit Payments

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning

Total OPEB liability - ending (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer
Net Investment Income
Benefit Payments

Administrative Expense

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Plan Fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan Fiduciary net position - ending (b)

City's net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b)

Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total oPEB liabilify

$ 162"17r.27r $ 17 1.180.003 $ r62.27s.846

(9,008,732)
1 71 .1 80.003

g,go4,l57

s.846
8,20r,892

154.073.9s4

$ 3,825,260 $

(3,825,260)

3,715,754 $

(3,715,754)

3,505,480

(3,505,480)

$ $ $

s 162.r71.27t $ l7l 3$ t62-275.84680-00

Covered Payroll $

0%

20,652,801 $

828.85o/oTotal OPEB Liability as a percentage of covered payroll

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of Benefit Terms:
None
Implied Subsidy: Approximately $540,000 is included in Benefit Payments/Contributions.

Changes in Assumptions:
Changes in assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects ofchanges in the discount rate each period.

The following are the discount rates used in each period:
12/3v18 3.64%
12131119 3.260/o

12130/20 1.93o/o

No assets are accumulated in a Trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75 to pay related benefits

GASB 75 requires that the past l0 years of information be presented. Due to the fact that 2018 was the year of implementation,

prior year information is not available for l0 years. The data will be accumulated over time and presented according to GASB 75.

UYo

21,511,736 $

7s3.89%

0o/o

20,675,343

784.88o/o
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
SCHEDULE OF OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS

2020 2019 201 8

Actuarial determined contribution (SC + 20 year amort NOL) $ 16,793,756 $ 16,180,344 $ 15,136,996

Actual contributions relating to the actuarially
determined contribution
Contribution (Excess)/Defi ciency

Covered - employee Payroll

Contributions as a percentage ofcovered - employee payroll

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation date:
Disclosure date:

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost methood
Amortization method
Amortization period
Asset valuation method
Inflation
Healthcare cost trend rates
Salary increases
Investment rate of return

Retirement age
Mortality

(3.82s"260) 8.715 ,754) (3,505,480)

$ 12,968,496 $ r $ 11,631,516

$ 21,5u,136 $ 20,652,801 $ 20,675,343

17.78o/o 17.99Yo 16.95o/o

Entry Age Normal
N/A
N/A

Market
3.O0Vo

80% decrease to 5%o

3.00yo
1.93Yo 3.26%0

Rates start at 20 years, or age 55 and
10 years

RP 2006 with MP 2020 Projection

1/1t2020
t2/31t2020

Ut/2019
t/1t2018

t/U2018
t/U20t8

3-640/"

GASB 75 requires that the past l0 years of information be presented. Due to the fact that 2018 was the
year of implementation, prior year information is not available for 10 years. The data will be
accumulated over time and presented according to GASB 75.
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
SCHEDULE OF'THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF'THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Plan Year Ended
Emptoyees' Retirement SYstem

313r/2020

313u2019

3t31120r8

3/31t2017

3t3|2016

313112015

Plan Year Ended
Police and Fire Retirement SYstem

313U2020

3/31/2019

3l3ll2018

313l/2017

313112016

3/3112015

Proportion of the
Net Pension

Asset (Liabilitv

0.03352990Yo

0.03108170%

0.o3155560y:o

0.03110000%

0.03084540y;o

0.03104620y"

Proportion of the
Net Pension

Asset fl.iabilitv)

0.25362570Yo

0.25251730Yo

0.26734270o/o

0.26741750Vo

0.26917960Vo

0.260441300/o

Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension
Asset (Liabiliw)

Net Pension
Asset (Liability) as a Percentage

ofCovered Pavroll

92.830

23.00o/o

1l.95Yo

33.88Yo

54.49Yo

ll.87Yo

Net Pension
Asset (Liability) as a Percentage

ofCovered Payroll

Fiduciary Net Position
as a Percentage of

Total Pension LiabiliW

86.39Vo

96.27Yo

98.24Yo

94.70o/o

90.70Yo

97.95Vo

Fiduciary Net Position
as a Percentage of

Total Pension Liability

$

$

$

$

$

$

(8,878,900) $

(2,202,23r) s

(1,0r4,867) $

(2,922,228) $

(4,950,767) $

(1,045,219) $

(13,556,133) $

(4,234,87s) s

(2,702,179) $

(s,s42,633) $

(7,969,833) $

(716,8e0) $

Covered
Pavroll

Covered
Pavroll

9,564,299

9,575,008

8,490,239

8,625,019

9,085,750

8,805,830

Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension
Asset

$

$

$

$

$

$

10,124,452

10,s66,486

l 0,007,8s7

1r,289,209

10,826,434

10,492,852

133.89Yo

40.08Yo

27.00Yo

49.llYo

73.6l%0

6.83o/o

84.86Yo

95.OgYo

96.93Yo

93.50Yo

90.20Yo

99.00o/o

GASB 6g requires that the past l0 years of intbrmation be presented. Due to the fact that GASB 68 was recently implemented, prior year infbrmation is not available tbr l0

years. The data will be accumulated over time and presented according to GASB 68.
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CITY OF'KINGSTON NEW YORI(
SCHEDULE OF INDEBTEDNESS
DECEMBER 31,2020

Date

oflssue

Date

of Final Interest

Rate

Outstanding

Beginning of
Fiscal Year

Issued

During
Fiscal Year

Paid

During
Fiscal Year

Refinanced

During
Fiscal Year

Outstanding

End of
Fiscal Year

Interest Paid

During
Fiscal Year

Interest

Accrued at

l2/31/2020

Due

Within the

Next Year

BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES

Various Improvements 2019

Various Improvements 2020

Water Improvements 2019

Water Improvements 2020

Sewer Improvements 2017

Water Improvements 2015

Water Improvements 2017
TOTAL BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES

INSTALLMENT OBLIGATIONS
Equipment Lease 2005

Wendel Energy 2007

Equipment Lease 2015

Vehicle Lease 2017

TOTAL INSTALLMENT PURCHASE DEBT

2020

2021

2020

2021

2022

2020

202t

2020

2022

2020

2022

2025

2025

2024

2031

2027

2032
2026

2035

2038

2040

2050

2.000o/o

1.500yo

3.000%

1.250o/o

0.000%

0.000%

1.170o/o

9,732,463

1,880,000

468,679

2,116,t2s

144.012

t4.34t.279

68,518

967,78s

21,770

87.918

1.14s.99 r

935,000

152,000

450,000

3,700,000

1,350,000

2,445,000

I,179,999

5,975,000

n,126,704

3,200,000

4,000,000

244,032

l.2l r.988

8.6s6.020

471,394

r.&5'7.213

(47s,000)

(48,500)

(68,s l 8)

(3 I 1,828)

(21,7'70)

(28.331\
(430.447\

$$$ $ (e,2s7,463) $

9,257,463

( 1,83 r,500)

l,83 l,500

$ 194,6s0 $

56,243

5"176

3.806

259.875

65,92r I I,101.463

57,100 5,831,500

s.424 1.3s6.000

t28"445 18.288.963

10,669 322,474

29.295r69

10,838 351.769

$

t2,4s7,463

(3,000)

(40,000)

5,83 1,500

465,679

(2,320,1s7)

1.3s6.000
(s66.s00) Q.320.1s7\ 20.110.642

4.490%
4.490%
3.000o/o

3.350%

4.2s - s.025%
3.814 - 4.27%

3.s29 - 3 .969%
0.281 - 4.t13%

2.OO - 4.25o/o

0.285 - 3.4o/o

2.00 - 5.00%
2.00 - 3.50/o

3.00 - 3375vo

.25o/o-2.4250/"

0%

655,957

59_587

715.544 39.769

13,450

1,27r
8,998

67,634

50,8s l
5 1,638

45,056

t53"425

326,044

3,077

33,040

661

2.991

SERIAL BONDS

Clean Water Revolving Loan

Clean Water Revolving Loan

Clean Water Revolving Loan

Clean Water Revolving Loan

Various Public Improvements

Clean Water Revolving Loan

Refunding Serial Bonds

Public Improvement

Public Improvement

Drinking Water Statutory Bond

Drinking Water Statutory Bond

TOTAL SERIAL BONDS

TOTAL INDEBTEDNESS

2004

2005

200s

20rt
2010

2012
2015

20t5
2018

2020

2020

(r40,000)
(22,000)
(8s,000)

(300,000)

(220,000)

(165,000)

(200,000)

(s25,000)

(82s,000)

795,000

130,000

365,000

3,400,000

1,1 30,000

2,280,000

9'79,999

5,450,000
t0"301,'104

471,394

t.857.213

11,979

2,t04
3,5'16

2 1,88 I
9,677

r 1,438

I 8,359

43,2t8
I 0s,923

874

145,000

26,000

8s,000

300,000

22s,000

165,000

200,000

535,000

75r,703
20,000

49j26
27.3t3.703 2.328.607 12.482"000) 27.t60.310 718.367 229.029 2.502.229

$ 42,800,973 $10,984,627 S(3,478,947)$(2,320,rs7)$ 47,986,496 $1,018,011 $368,312 $21,142,96r
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF'FEDERAL AWARDS
DECEMBER 31,2020

Federal

CFDA
Grantor/ Program Title Number
US DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVBLOPMENT
DIRECT PROGRAMS:
CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants l4.2lg *

PASSED THROUGH NYS HOUSING TRUST FUND CORP.:
HOME Investment Partnerships Program

Pass-Through Entity
Identilling

NumberA.lYSDOT

Contract/ Reference

Number

N/A

14.239 SHARS ID 20133151

16.607 N/A

20.205 N/A

N/A

N/A

97.039 3972704

s 64,372 $ 710,6s4

9,200

30,000

2,t42,689

48,630

616,616

4t,363

9,1t8
53 123
62,241

I19.433

$ 64,372 $3.780,826

Provided to

Subrecipients

Total Federal

Expenditures

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
DIRECT PROGRAMS:

Brownfields Multipurpose, Assessment, Revolving Loan Fund
and Cleanup Cooperative Agreements 66.818

PASSED THROUGH NEW YORK STATE:
Drinking LI/ater State Revolving Fund Cluster

Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 66.458

US DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
DIRECT PROGRAMS:

Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program

US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
PASSED THROUGH NEW YORK STATE:
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster

Highway.Planning and Construction

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
PASSED THROUGHNEW YORK STATE DHSES:

Hazard Mitigation Grant

Disaster Crants - Public Assistance
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance
Staffing for Adequate Fire & Emergency Response (SAFER)

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDED

97.036 *
97.036 *
97.036 *
97.083

3972706
3972707

N/A
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
NOTES TO THE SCHEDUL0 Ot'EXPENDTI'URIIS Ot'' l'Ut EKAL AWARDS ANti
STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE
DECEMBER 31,2020

NOTE 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "schedule") includes the Federal award activity of
the City of Kingston, New York under programs of the federal government for the year ended December 31,2020'
Federal awards received directly from the Federal agencies as well as Federal awards passed through other govemment

agencies are included in the Schedule. The federal information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the

requirements of Title 2, U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"). Because the Schedule presents only a
selectid portion ofthe operations ofthe City, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in

net position, or cash flows of the City.

NOTE 2 - Summarv of Sisnificant Accountine Policies

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis ofaccounting. Such expenditures are

recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are

not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 - Indirect Cost Rate

The City of Kingston, New York has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the

Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 - Sub-recipients

The following is a summary of sub-recipient activity fot 2020:

Program Title
Communify Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants

CDFA Number
14.2r8

Amount
Provided to

Subrecipients
$ 64,372

In addition, the City of Kingston has designated the Kingston Local Development Corporation ("KLDC") as its
subrecipient for purposes of the RUD 108 Loan program. See KLDC financial statement for details on outstanding 108

loans.

NOTE 5 - Loans Outstandine

The City had the following gross loan receivable balances outstanding at December 31,2020, which were originally
funded with federal awards. Loans made during the year are included in the federal expenditures presented in the

schedule:

Program Title

Federal
CFDA

Number

Expenditures
for the Year

Ended
December
31,2020

Amount
Outstanding
December

Community
Development Block

Grant Program

31 2020

14.218 $ 143,513 $1,071,231
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF F'EDERAL AWARDS AND
STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE
DECEMBER 3t,2020

NOTE 6 - Reconciliation to Financial Statements

The federal expenditures presented in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "SEFA") reconcile to the
Federal revenue reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance as follows:

Federal
Federal expenditures as reported in the SEFA

Reconciling items:
SEFA is reported on the basis ofexpenditures not revenues

$ 3,780,826

Total Federal Aid reported in fund statements s 3.63 8,486

042.340\

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-Government
Funds
Federal aid as reported in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds

$ 3,607,559

30,927

Total Federal Aid $ 3,638,486

NOTE 7 - State Matchine Costs

State Transportation Operation Assistance Program grant is 80% federal funded, l0%o state funded, and l0% local match.
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RBT
LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP

CERTIFIED PUSLICACCOUNTANTS BUSINESSDEVELOPMENTCONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
G OVE RN M ENT AU DI TI NG STANDARDS

Members of the Common Council

City of Kingston, New York
420 Broadway
Kingston, New York 12401

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the

standards applicable to financial audits contain ed in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General

of the United States, the financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate

discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Kingston, New York ("the City"), as of and for the year ended December 3 I , 2020, and the related notes to the financial

statements, which collectively comprise the City of Kingston, New York's basic financial statements, and have issued

our report thereon dated September29,2021.Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial

statements of the City's Water Fund and the discretely presented component units, as described in our report on the Cify

of Kingston, New York's financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors'testing of
internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters which are reported separately by these

auditors.

Intemal Control Over Financial Reportine

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over financial

reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
.ip..tring our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the City's intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Kingston, New York's internal control.

A deJiciency in internal conlrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or

employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements

on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control such that

there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or

detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in

intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was

not designed to identifu all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies

and, theiefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given these

limitations, during our audit we did not identifi any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material

weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

rr:i*pc:.eonr - 'ri , ,-.-

11 Rocquel Rodd
Newburgh, NY 12550
T: (645) 567-9o00
F: (645) 567-9226

2676 South Rood, Suile 101

Poughkeepsie, NY'12601
Tr (645) 465-5510
F: {645) 485-5547

P.O. Box 209
51 Sullivon Streel

Wurtsboro, NY 12790
T: (S45) 888-5656
F: (845) 666-2769

540 Modison Av€nue
t9lh Floor

New York, NY lOlTJ
1: (716] ,72-0650
F: (7161 772-0651
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Kingston, New York's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Pumose ofthis Renort
The purpose ofthis report is solely to describe the scope ofour testing ofinternal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance wilh Government Auditing Standards in considering the
entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

(KBCTCQAS, LLQ

Newburgh, NY
September 29,2021
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RBT
LIMITED LIABILITY PARTN ERSHIP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS BUSINESSDEVELOPMENTCONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Members of the Common Council
City of Kingston
420 Broadway
Kingston, New York 12401

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Kingston, New York ("the City")'s compliance with the types of compliance requirements

described in lhe OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City of
Kingston, New York's major federal programs for the year ended December 31,2020. The City's major federal

programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and

questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards.

Auditorns Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Kingston, New York's major federal

programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards

applicable to financial audits containedinGovernment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the

United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 IJ.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those

standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and

material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the

City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.

However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City of Kingston, New York's compliance.

rbtcpos.conra n rffi--- '

11 Rocquet Roqd
FleY/burgh, NY 12550
T: (645) $67-e000
F: (645] 567-9226

2676 South Rood, Suita lOl
Poughk€epsie, NY 1260l

T: (0451 46$-5510
F: (6451 485-5547

P.O. Box 209
51 Sullivdn S{reet

Wurisboro, N Y 12790
T: (045) 886-5656
F: (645) 808-27E9

340 Hodison Avenue
l9th Floor

New York, NY lOlT5
1: (718) 772-oS50
F: (716) 7 72-a 651
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Opinion

In our opinion, the City of Kingston, New York complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs identified in the summary of auditor's
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs for the year ended December 31,2020.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance which is required to be reported in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item, 2020-002. Our
opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to this matter.

The City of Kingston, New York's response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The City's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Kingston, New York is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements refened to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered the City of Kingston, New York's intemal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on intemal control over
compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Kingston, New York's intemal
control over compliance.

A deJiciency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow
managsment or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deJiciency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. We did identify a deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiency which is
described in the accompanying schedule offindings and questioned costs as item 2020-001.

The City of Kingston, New York's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying managements responses to the findings and corrective action plan. The City's response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over
compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable
for any other purpose.

KB(CQAS, LL(P

Newburgh, NY
September 29,2021
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CITY OF KINCSTON, NEW YORK
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT F'INDINGS
DECEMBER_ 31,2020

A. tnternal Control Findings

None Noted

B. Compliance Findines

None noted
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
SCHEDULE OF'F'INDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
DECEMBER 31,2020

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditors'report issued: Unmodified

Intemal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes
Significant deficiency(s) identified? 

- 

yes

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? Yes

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes
Significant deficiency(s) identified? T-v"t

Type of auditors'report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Section
2 CFR 200.516(a)? X yes

Identification of major programs:

CFDA/Grant Numbers Name of Federal Prosram or Cluster

X No
None reported

No

No
None reported

No

No

X

X

X

14.218
97.036

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance

$ 750,000

Yes

Dollar threshold to distinguish between type A and type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee X
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NDW YORK
SCHIDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
DECEMBER 31,2020

SECTION II -FINDINGS

A. Financial Statement Findings

None noted

B. Findings and Ouestioned Costs for Federal Awards

14.21 8 Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants

Finding 2020-001 CDBG Approvals Internal Control

Condition: The Community Development expenditures did not contain all of the proper approval
signatures.

Criteria: A minimum of three approval signatures are required for expenditures.

Cause: There was some tumover in the department'

Effect: Required approval signatures were not all documented.

Recommendation: RBT recommends that all internal controls are completely satisfied for all expenditures.

Finding 2020-002

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Reporting

One ofthe quarterly federal financial reports could not be tied back to the bank activity.

Community Development is required to submit quarterly deferral financial reports.

The amounts reported did not all agree to the bank activity.

The report was not accurate.

RBT recommends that all the amounts on the reports tie to the banking activity before
submission.
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CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK
MANAGEMENT RESPONSES TO FINDINGS AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
DECEMBER 31,2020

City of Kingston - Corrective Action Plan

SECTION II -FINDINGS

Finding 2020-001 CDBG Approvals

Condition: The Community Development expenditures did not contain all of the proper approval
signatures.

Criteria: A minimum of three approval signatures are required for expenditures.

Cause: There was some turnover in the department.

Effect: Required approvals signatures were no all documented.

Recommendation: RBT recommends that all intemal controls are completely satisfied for all expenditures.

Managements Response:
The current Office of Community Development staff have met to discuss disbursement protocols and will ensure
all vouchers have at minimum, three approval signatures for expenditures as per the financial internal controls

ffictive immediately.

Finding 2020-002 Reporting

Condition: One of the quarterly federal financial reports could not be tied back to the bank
activity.

Criteria: Community Development is required to submit quarterly deferral financial reports.

Cause: The amounts reported did not all together agree to the bank activity.

Effect: The report was not accurate.

Recommendation: RBT recommends that all the amounts on the reports tie to the banking activity
Before submission.

Managements Response:
The Federal Cash Transaction Reports will no longer be filed by anyone other than the person who is in charge
of the financialsfor the department effective immediately.
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RESOLUTION 219 of 2021

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KINGSTON,
NEW YORK, AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT AND REDUCING THE }OI9IIL,
2OI9I2O,2O2OI2I AND 2O2II22 ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR I9.2I MAIN STREET,
LLC, SBL 48.331.4-14 _ FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2I MAIN STREET

Sponsored By: Finance/Audit Committee: Alderman: Scott-
Childress, Tallerman, Davis, Hirsch, Schabot

WHEREAS, 19-21 Main Street, LLC commenced an action challenging its
assessments for the real property located at2l Main Street, SBL 48.3 3l-4-I4; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Kingston is desirous of entering into a Settlement
Agreement regarding same, thereby changing prior assessments to the revised
assessments for the years 2018 through 2021 for 19-21Main Street, LLC for property at
2l Main Street, SBL 48.331-4-14.

NOW THEREF'ORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
KINGSTON, NEW YORK AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That the Common Council of the City of Kingston authorizes the
settlement of the tax review proceedings instituted by I9-2I Main Street, LLC for the tax
assessment rolls of 201 8, 201 9, 2020 and 2021 for property locate d at 2I Main Street
(Tax Map No. 48-331-4-14), as shown on the attached Settlement Agreement.

SECTION 2. That the Common Council of the City of Kingston authorizes
Steven T. Noble, Mayor, Kyle Barnett, Esq. of Van DeWater & Van DeWater, LLP and
Daniel Baker, City Assessor, to sign any and all documents as are necessary to effectuate
said settlement.

SE oN3. This resolution shall take effect immediately

Submitted to the Mayor this _ day of Approved by the Mayor this _ day of
2021 2021

Elisa Tinti, City Clerk Steven T. Noble, Mayor

Adopted by Council on 2021
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1THE CITY OF KINGSTON COMMON COUNCIL

FINANCE AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE REPORT

REQUEST DESCRIPTION

CONTINGENCY TRANSFERINTERNAL TRANSFER
AUTHORIZATION X
CLAIMS

TRANSFER-
BONDING REQUEST-
OTHER

BUDGET MODIFICATION
ZONING

sBL# 48.331-4-14

Roll Year AV Reduced From AV Reduced To

21Mainsf

Descrintion: Authorization of Settlement (19-21Main St.. LLC vs. Citv of Kinsston')

Estimated Financial Impact: $ 4,308.40 S

2018 600,000

20L9 660,000

2020 660,000

2021 660,000

DEPARTMENT: Assessment DATE: l0ll3l202l

525,000

550,000

550,000

550,000

Motion

Seconded

Action Required

SEQRA Decision
Type I Action
Type II Action
Unlisted Action

Negative Declaration of Environmental Significance: _
Conditioned Negative Declaration :

Seek Lead Agency Status: _

Committee Vote YES
NO

Reynolds Scott Childress, Ward 3,

Chairman

Don Tallerman, Ward 5

Anthony Davis, Ward 6

Michele Hirsch, Ward 9

Steven Schabot, Ward 8Positive Declaration of Environmental Significance: _





W,,^,,
Elisa

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Baker, Daniel

Tuesday, October 12,20214:31 PM

Scott-Childress, Reynolds; Shaut, Andrea
Tinti, Elisa; Bryant, Kevin; Kyle Barnett
Old Business (Finance Committee) 19-21 Main St v City of Kingston

Madam President and Chairman Scott-Childress,

19-21 Main St has been on the Finance Committee Agenda for the past two months as Old Business.
It appears we have an agreement to resolve this matter. I am not seeing this item on tomorrow's agenda.
Please advise as to the earliest this old business item can be added to an agenda for the Finance Committee so a
committee report can be presented.
ls tomorrow's meeting possible?

Respectfully,

Dan

Daniel Baker
City of I(ingston
Assessor
(845) 334-39L2
dbaker@krnES ton-nv. Eov

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE
1'his e-mail, including attachments, may contain information that is conf,dential and it may be protected by the attorney/client or other privileges.
l'his e-mail, including attachments, constitutes information to be conveyed only to the designated recipient(s).
The unauthorized use, dissemination, distribution or teproduction of this e-mail, including attachments is prohibited and may be unlawful.
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STATE OF NEW YORK
SUPREME COURT : COUNTY OF ULSTER

In the Matter of the Petition of

19-21Main Street, LLC,

Petitioner,

The Assessor of the City of Kingston, New
York, and the City of Kingston, New york,

Respondents,

For Review of Tax Assessment Under
Article 7 of the Real Property Tax Law.

Index Nos.: 18-2743
19-2431
82020-1852
EF-202t-2t00

RJI Nos. 55-18-00187
RII Year 2019
RII Year 2020
RII Year 2021

Judge Assigned:
Hon. Christopher Cahill

vs.

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the above entitled Real Properly Tax Law Article 7 proceedings were

commenced by the petitioner, 19-21Main Street, LLC ("Petitioner'), against the Assessor of the

City of Kingston, New York ("Assessor") and the City of Kingston, New York ("City"), for the tax

years 20 1 8 120 19, 2A 0 I 2020, 2020 12021 and 202t 12022; and

WHEREAS, Petitioner is the owner of real property located at 21 Main Street, Kingston,

New York, designated on the City's assessment and tax rolls as Tax Map Parcel No. 48.331-4-14

("Subject Parcel"); and

WHEREAS, it is the intention ofthe parties to resolve and settle all disputes and differences

concerning the valuation and assessment of the Subject Parcel, including but not limited to

Petitioner's claims of selective reassessment; and





WHEREAS, the parties are desirous of settling and discontinuing the captioned proceedings

on the basis hereinafter set forth;

NOW, therefore, the parties, through their attorneys, hereby stipulate and agree as follows:

1. For tax year 20t812019, the total assessment on the Subject Parcel shall be reduced

from $600,000 to $525,000.

2. For tax years 2019/2020,202012021 and 202112022, the total assessment on the

Subject Parcel shall be reduced from $660,000 to $550,000.

3. Pursuant to and in accordance with Section 727 of the Real Parcel Tax Law, and

subject to the provisions of paragraphs "4" andoo5," infra,theassessment on the Subject Parcel shall

be maintained at $550,000 on the 2022, 2023 and 2024 tax assessment rolls, and shall not be

adjusted by the City or the Assessor on the assessment rolls prepared and adopted in 2022,2023 and

2024, and Petitioner shall not challenge said assessments on the assessment rolls prepared and

adopted in 2022, 2023 and 2024.

4. In accordance with said Section 727,nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit the City

from changing the assessment on the Subject Parcel in the event Petitioner makes additions or

alterations to, or improvements on, or in the event of destruction, retirement or demolition without

replacement of the improvements on the Subject Parcel, which affect the taxable value of the Subject

Parcel and, similarly, Petitioner shall not be baned from challenging and commencing proceedings

to review the assessment on the Subject Parcel in the event there have been any new assessments

because of additions, alterations or improvements, or in the event of destruction, retirements or

demolition without replacement ofthe improvements on the Subject Parcel which affect the taxable

value of the Subject Parcel. Such changes in assessment shall be limited to changes attributable to
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such additions, alterations, improvements, destruction, retirements or demolitions. Neither an

assessment change nor a review under this paragraph will be a failure of the parties to perform the

Settlement Agreement.

5. In addition to the foregoing, in the event that the City undertakes a City-wide

revaluation, involving the inspection, appraisal and valuation of all properties within the City, the

City will not be prohibited from changing the assessment on the Subject Parcel, and Petitioner will

not be baned from challenging and commencing proceedings to review any such revaluation

assessment.

6. This Settlement Agreement applies only to the Subject Parcel and does not apply to

any other properties or tax map parcels owned by Petitioner.

7. The City, acting through its Assessor, or the proper official having custody of the

assessment roll and authority to do so, shall make or cause to be made, upon the proper books and

records and on the assessment rolls of the City of Kingston, the entries, changes and corrections

necessary to conform the assessments to the agreed upon reduced assessments.

8. For tax years 201812019. 201912020,2A20nA and 202112022, Petitioner will

receive refunds, without interest, for any excess City, County, School District, library or other ad

valorem taxes paid. Refunds shall be paid, by check and made payable to "Hinman, Howard &

Kattell, LLP, as attorneys," within sixty (60) days of the entry of an Order in this proceeding

directing such payment and the presentment of a demand for refunds. Ifpayment is not timely made,

interest shall accrue on any payment not timely paid from the date of each overpayment at the

statutory rate.

a
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9. An order may be entered upon this Settlement Agreement discontinuing and resolving

the captioned proceedings, with prejudice and without costs to Petitioner or the City, without further

notice.

10. This Settlement Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which

shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement.

Dated: Binghamton, New York
September_,2021

HINMAN, HOWARD & KATTELL, LLP

Paul T. Sheppard, Esq.
Attomeys for Petitioner
700 Security Mutual Building
80 Exchange Street
P.O. Box 5250
Binghamton, New York 13902-5250

Dated: Poughkeepsie, New York
September_,2021

Van DeWater and Van DeWater, LLP

Kyle W. Barnett, Esq.
Attomey for Respondents
85 Civic Center Plaza, Suite 101
P.O. Box 112
Poughkeepsie, New York 12601

By

4





RESOLUTION 220 of 2021 Ordinance: Parking Prohibited
Certain Hours

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
KINGSTON, NEW YORKO AMENDING SECTION 360, SCHEDULE XVI,
PARKING PROHIBITED CERTAIN HOURS

Sponsored By: Public Safety/General Government
Committee: Alderman: Davis, Koop, Scott-
Childress. Ventrrra Morell. Hirsch

WHEREAS, a request has been made to amend Section 360, Schedule XVI,
Parking Prohibited Certain Hours for garbage removal and street cleaning; and

WHEREAS' it is in the best interests of the City to amend Section 360,
Schedule XVI, Parking Prohibited Certain Hours.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That the Common Council of the City of Kingston authorizes
the amendment of Section 360, Schedule XVI, by prohibiting parking on
Broadway for garbage removal and street cleaning as follows:

Broadway, on both sides, on Tuesdays from 6 AM to 9 AM from Pine Grove
Avenue to Albany Avenue

SECTION 2. A1I ordinances and parts thereof, inconsistent herewith, are
hereby repealed.

SE oN 3. This ordinance shall take effect immediately after passage,
approval and publication as provided by law.

Submitted to the Mayor this _ day of Approved by the Mayor this
day of

202t

Elisa Tinti, City Clerk

Steven T. Noble, Mayor
Adopted by Council on ?,o?I
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TI{E CITY OF'KINGSTON COMMON COUNCIL

P{JBLIC SAF'ETYIGENERAL GCI/ERI.{MENT
COhTMITTEE REPORT

I}EPARTMENT: DATE: [0

Description:

r1.,

Signature:

Motion by fv.+
Seconded

Action Required:

SEQRA Decision:
Type I Action
Type II Action
Unlisted Action

Negative Declaration of Environmentar Significance: , _

Conditioned Negative Declaration:

Seek Lead Agency Status:

Committee Vote

Jeffrey Ventura Morell, Ward 1

{b YES NO

TT Davis, Chairman

.!o

*nnie scbttlchildress, w$/d 3 a

Positive Declaration of Environrnental Significance: _ Iv1i.:irele Hirsclr, Ward I





0
CITY OF KTNGSTON

f)epartment of Public Works
publicworks(D kingston-ny. gov

lidward N{rrman, Supcrinlcndcnl
Ryan Co<ur, Dcputy $upcrintcnclcnt $tcvcn'1'. Noblc, Mayor

September 30,202L

President Andrea Shaut
City of Kingston Common Council
420 firoadway
Kingston, NY L2401.

Dear President Shaut,

0n behalf of The Department of Public Works, we respectfully reque st an item be added to the agenda for
0ctober's Puhlic Safety Meeting, I would like to discuss parking restrictions on Hrosdway a$ thsy pertain
to garbage removal and street cleaning. Ynur assistance in getting this added to the agentla is greatly
appreciatCId.

Sincerely

Hdward Norman
Superintendent Public Works

EN/mkt

Mayor Steve Noble
K. Bryant, Corp. Counsel

E. Tinti, City Clerk
D. Quesnell, Parking

cc;

2li l'lasL ()'ltcilly.$trcct * Ki*gsrrn, Ncw York 19401 . (s4.!) 18l-0682 * Fax (tt4,5) l-l3l-0pli5 . 
www.kirrgsrorr-rry.g<rv





RESOLUTION 221 of 2021

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF'
KINGSTON, NEW YORK, REQUESTING THE MANUFACTURING AND
PLACEMENT OF CROSS WALK POSTS AND PEDESTRIAN FLAGS

Sponsored By: Public Safety/General Government
Committee: Alderman: Davis, Koop, Scott-
Childress. Venfirra Morell. Hirsch

WHEREAS, a request has been made for the manufacture of and placement
of cross walk posts and pedestrian flags.

NOW THEREF'ORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That the Common Council of the City of Kingston authorizes
the manufacture and placement of cross walk posts and pedestrian flags as the
following locations:

1. CrosswalkatNorth Front Street and Crown Street

2. Crosswalk at Broadway and Andrew Street

SECTION 2. Referring to Finance/Audit Committee for approval the cost
of the cross walk posts and pedestrian flags.

SECTION 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately.

Submitted to the Mayor this _ day of Approved by the Mayor this
day of

2021

Elisa Tinti, City Clerk

Steven T. Noble, Mayor
.202r

202r

Adopted by Council on





THE CIT'Y OF KINGSTON CO]VIMON COUI{CIL

PUBLIC SAF'ETYIGENERAL GCVERNMENT
CGIYIMITTEE REPORT

DEPARTMENT: DATE: u
Description:

ft\C I
Signafure:

Motion by
fVn
n&

Seconded

Action Required:

SEQRA Decision:
Type I Action
Type II Action
Unlisted Action

Negative Declaration of Environmentar Significance: ,

Conditioned Negative Declaraf ion:

Seek Lead Agency Status:

Positive Declaration of Environrnental Significance: _

Committee Vote

Jeffrey Ventura Morell, Ward 1

Yf,S NO

/

9a u [' a*

I1Jfl
/

-.4enniefic6tt-0hi 
I dres s, 

fl 
ard 3

/

/

Mi.:iiele Hirsclr, Ward 9





RESOLUTION 222 of 2021 Ordinance: Parking Prohibited
Snow Emergency

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
KINGSTON, NEW yORKo AMENDING SECTION 390.64 (4)

Sponsored By: Public Safety/General Government
Committee: Alderman: Davis, Koop, Scott-
Childress- Ventrrra Morell - Hirsch

WHEREAS, a request has been made to amend Section 390.64 (4) Parking
Prohibited during snow emergency; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City to amend Section 390.64
(4), Parking Prohibited during snow emergency.

NOW THEREFOREO BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF KINGSTON, NEW YORK AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. That the Common Council of the City of Kingston authorizes
the amendment of Section 390.64 (4) bv prohibiting parking during snow
emergencies by adding to Section a @) as follows:

4 (a). This section shall be applicable to the following streets as indicated on
the attached list and map.

SECTION 2. A11 ordinances and parts thereof, inconsistent herewith, are
hereby repealed.

SECTION 3. This ordinance shall take effect immediately after passage,
approval and publication as provided by law.

Submitted to the Mayor this _ day of Approved by the Mayor this
day of

,2021,

2021

Elisa Tinti, City Clerk

Steven T. Noble, Mayor
Adopted by Council on 2021
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THE CITY OF'KINGSTON COFIMON COUNCIL

PUBLIC SAF'ETYIGENERAL GGVEPNMENT
CGhIMITTEE REPOR.T

I}EPARTMENT: DATE: 2+

Description:

Signature

Motian 8-sc

DKSeconded

Action Required:

SEQRA Dscision:
Type I Actian
Type II Action
Unlisted Action

Negative Deslaration of Environmentar Significancs: _
Conditioned Negative Declaraf ion:

Seek Lead Agency Status:

Comrnittee Vote YSq NO

'""''fl;;6;**r. 7/
lov$ (oop- fard L

l/rnv /
Rfnriie S/o#-Ct{ildress, $$rd 3

/

Jeffrey Ventura Marell, Ward I

/

Fasitive Declaration of Environrnentai Signific&nce: _ Ivlicix:le Hirsch, Ward g





@
CI'IY OF KINGSTON

Department of Public Works
publir:works@kinpton-ny.gov

l,ldward Norunan, SupcrinlcndcnL
llyan Coon, f)cputy Supcrintcndcnl tilrvcn'1", Nohlc, Mayor

Septomber 3CI, ?0?1.

President Andrea Shaut
City of Kingston Common Council
420 Broadway
Kingston, NY 1?401

Dear Prerident $haut,

On behalf of The Department of Public Wnrks, we respectfully rnquest an item be added to the agenda for
October's Public Safety Meeting" I would like to discuss parking re$trictions as they pertain to the City's
$now cmergency routes. Your assistance in Setting thls added to the agenda is greatly appreciated.

Sincere

Edward Nurman

Superintendent Public Works

EN/mkt

Mayor Steve Noble
K. Bryant Corp. Counsel

E. Tinti, City Clerk
D, Quesnell, Parking

cc:

2.5 liast O'ltcilly lllrcct * Kingsk>n, Ncw York l?401 . (84.5) 33l.06lll . lhx (B4.5) ll:|l.0zg5 . www,kingsron-ny,$ov





Hurley Avenue

Schwenck Drive

Lucas Avenue

Washington Avenue

GreenkillAvenue

Wilbur Avenue

Abeel Street

O'Reilly Street

-rAlbany Avenue

Broadway

Foxhall Avenue

Flatbush Avenue

Clifton Avenue

East Chester Street

Garden Street

Hasbrouck Avenue

Deleware Avenue

North Street

East Strand

Pearl Street

Linderman Avenue

Elaine Drive

Garraghan Drive

Frog Alley

Cornell Street

Andrew Street

Marys Avenue

Blvd
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